Request for Sealed Proposals

RFP #21-003-OECH-R1 Removal and Replacement of Passenger and Service Elevators at Cuartel de Ballajá





Date Initial RFP Issued: December 16, 2021,

Proposals Due Date: January 11, 2022, at 10:00 a.m. AST

Contact Person: rfpquestions@asg.pr.gov



Issued By: Administración de Servicios Generales de Puerto Rico



Table of Contents

1.	Definitions/Acronyms	4
2.	Introduction	
	2.1. The Puerto Rico General Services Administration	6
	2.2. Overview and Purpose	6
3.	Instructions to Proponents	6
	3.1. RFP Process Administration	6
	3.2. RFP Timeline	7
	3.3. Proposal Submission	7
	3.3.1. Physical Proposal	7
	3.3.2. Electronic Proposal	8
	3.3.3. Redacted Proposal	8
	3.4. Requests for Clarification (RFCs)	8
	3.5. Site Visit	
	3.6. Pre-Proposal Meeting	
	3.7. Registration in "Registro Único de Licitadores (RUL)"	9
	3.8. Universal Identifier and System for Award Management	
	3.9. Bidder Point of Contact & Signature	
	3.10. Addendum	
4.	Scope of Work	
	4.1. General Scope of Work	11
	4.2. Technical Specifications	
5.	Proposal Content Requirements	
	5.1. Bidder Proposal Checklist	14
	5.2. Bidder Summary Information and Addenda Acknowledgement	14
	5.3. Proposal Transmittal Letter	
	5.4. Firm Experience and Financial Capacity	15
	5.4.1. Business Profile	
	5.4.2. Comparable Project Experience	16
	5.4.3. Business Financial Capacity	16
	5.5. Proposed Approach and Key Personnel	16
	5.5.1. Project Approach Narrative	16
	5.5.2. Project Organizational Structure, Staffing Plan & Key Personnel	17
	5.6. Project Schedule and Milestones	17
	5.7. Cost Proposal	
	5.8. Proposed Inclusion of Small, Minority and Woman-Owned Businesses	18
	5.8.1. Overview & Purpose	18
	5.8.2. Identifying M/WBEs	19
	5.8.3. Preference Points	20
	5.9. Bid Bond	
6.	Bid Evaluation, Selection, and Award	21
	6.1. Evaluation Criteria	22
	6.2. Evaluation Scorecard	
	6.3. Cost Proposal Evaluation	23
	6.4. Initial Evaluation	23
	6.5. Award Procedures	23



1.	RFP Process Requirements & Notices	24
	7.1. Modification of Proposal	24
	7.2. Withdrawal of Submitted Proposal	
	7.5. Amendments to RFP.	
	7.6. Rejection of Proposals and Cancellation of RFP	
	7.7. Errors and Omissions in Proposal	
	7.8. Sub-Contractor/ Partner Disclosure	
	7.9. Prohibited Communications	
	7.10. Public Announcements	
	7.11. Challenge to the Invitation and/or Bid Package	
0	7.12. Administrative and Judicial Review	
8.	General Conditions and Requirements	
	8.1. Requirements by Contractor Type of Organization	
	8.2. Contractors' Good Standing and Notification of Disbarments, Legal Issues, Owner	
	Structures, and Conflicts	
	8.3. Contractor Certification Requirements	
	8.4. Performance and Payment Bonds	
	8.5. Insurance Requirements	31
	8.6. Termination Clauses	32
	8.7. Contract Terms and Conditions	33
9.	Bidder Certification Requirement	36
10.	FOMB Contract Review	
11.	Payments	37
12.	Local Preference.	
13.	ATTACHMENTS	
10.	Attachment A: Bidder Proposal Checklist	
	Attachment B: Bidder Summary Information and Addenda Acknowledgment	
	Attachment C: Comparable Project Fact Sheet	
	Attachment D: Past Performance Questionnaire	
	Attachment E: Cost Form	
	Attachment F: M/WBE Efforts	
	Attachment G: Bid Bond Form	52
	Attachment H: Contractor's Good Standing, Limited Denial of Participation	
	(LDP)/Suspension or Debarment Status, Legal Issues, Ownership Structures, and	
	Conflicts	54
	Attachment I: Lobbying Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative	
	Agreements	
	Attachment J: Contractor Certification Requirement	
	Attachment K: Liquidated Damages	
	Attachment L: Minimum Federal Terms and Conditions	59
Tab	le of Figures	
	21- RFP General Timeline	7
	2- Passenger Elevator Specifications	
	2 3- Freight/Service Elevator Specifications	
	24 - Evaluation Criteria	
	5 – Evaluation Scorecard	



1. Definitions/Acronyms

- **ASG** means the "Administración de Servicios Generales" of Puerto Rico (or the Puerto Rico General Services Administration).
- **Award Announcement** refers to the act of announcing the selected proponent(s) upon evaluating offers or proposals in response to a Request for Proposal with the intention of granting a contract to the proponent that best meets the criteria, specifications, terms, and conditions established.
- **Best Value** refers to the expected outcome of an acquisition that, in the Government's estimation, provides the greatest overall benefit to the Government in response to the requirements.
- **Bid Board** shall mean the Bid Board of the ASG.
- **Bid Package** refers to this Request for Sealed Proposals with all of its attachments, Addenda, and responses to Request for Clarifications.
- **Bid Review Board** Bid Review Board of the General Services Administration of the Government of Puerto Rico
- **Bidder** or **Proponent** means a(n) (i) natural person, (ii) legal person, (iii) joint venture, or (iv) partnership, or (v) consortium of individuals, and/or partnerships, and/or companies or other entities that submit a response to this Request for Sealed Proposals that is not currently debarred in any Federal, State and/or Local jurisdictions.
- **Business Hours** refers to non-Government holiday, non-weekend hours between 8:00 AM Atlantic Standard Time (AST) and 5:00 PM AST. Scheduled preventive maintenance, scheduled upgrades, time before initial installation, and unavailability due to power outages, lack of network availability, or Force Majeure events are excluded from Business Hours available.
- Contractor Bidder doing business as a Corporation, Partnership or Joint Venture duly organized under the laws of the Government of Puerto Rico, or foreign business organizations authorized to do business in Puerto Rico and registered under the Puerto Rico General Services Administration "Registro Único de Licitadores" (RUL) or Bidders Sole Register.
- **DTPW** refers to the Puerto Rico Department of Public Works (DPTW) or the "Departamento de Obras Públicas de Puerto Rico".
- **Electronic Signature** refers to a digital image of a hand-written signature that serves as an official signature in binding legal documents.
- **FEMA** refers to the U.S. Federal Emergency Management Agency.
- **Financial Oversight Management Board** or **FOMB** refers to the Board created under the Puerto Rico Oversight, Management, and Economic Stability Act of 2016 ("PROMESA").
- **Government** means the Government of Puerto Rico. It is inclusive of but not limited to other government branches, municipalities, and instrumentalities.



- **Government Entity** refers to any department, agency, board, commission, body, bureau, office, public corporation, or instrumentality of the Executive Branch, whether existing or to be created in the future.
- **HUD** refers to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.
- **Instrumentality** means any entity, agency, or public corporation of the Government of Puerto Rico.
- **Liquidated Damages** an amount of money, agreed upon by the parties at the time of the contract signing, that establishes the damages that can be recovered in the event a party breaches the contract.
- OSHA- refers to the U.S. Occupational Safety and Health Administration.
- **PRASA** refers to the Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority (PRASA) or "Autoridad de Acueductos y Alcantarillados de Puerto Rico".
- **PREPA** refers to the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority (PREPA) or "Autoridad de Energía Eléctrica de Puerto Rico".
- **RUL** refers to ASG's "Registro Único de Licitadores" or Bidders Sole Register.
- Request for Sealed Proposals or RFP or Request for Proposals refers to this Request for Sealed Proposal and all addenda issued by ASG. Request for Proposals with an estimated cost greater than \$100,000, as defined by ASG's Uniform Regulation for Purchases and Bids of Goods, Works, and Nonprofessional Services, are named Request for Sealed Proposals and they require a sealed proposal. This process is technically a Request for Sealed Proposal, but for practical matters the term Request for Proposal or RFP will be used throughout this document and process.
- **SHPO** refers to the Puerto Rico State Historic Preservation Office or "Oficina Estatal de Conservación Histórica".
- Uniform General Conditions for Public Works Contracts in Puerto Rico the portion of the contract document in which the rights, responsibilities, and relationships of the parties involved are itemized. It defines each contracting party's duties and privileges, and the rules that will govern the relationship.
- Uniform Regulation for Purchases and Bids of Goods, Works, and Nonprofessional Services of the General Services Administration of the Government of Puerto Rico or Regulation #9230 of ASG – ASG Regulation #9230, approved November 18, 2020. The provisions of this Regulation shall apply to all procedures of purchases and bids of goods, works and nonprofessional services carried out by ASG.
- **Vendor Awarded** or **Awarded Bidder** or **Selected Bidder** means the selected Bidder or Proponent to be awarded a contract as a result of this Request for Sealed Proposals.



2. Introduction

2.1. The Puerto Rico General Services Administration

The Puerto Rico General Services Administration (ASG), by virtue of Act 73-2019, as amended, is the entity responsible for processing all purchases and bids of goods, works, and nonprofessional services of the Government of Puerto Rico. ASG has the authority to act as the procuring and negotiating entity for all Government entities.

Act 73-2019, as amended, establishes as public policy of the Government of Puerto Rico the centralization of purchases and acquisition processes to generate greater savings for the benefit of Puerto Rico. ASG adopts Regulation #9230, known as the "Uniform Regulation for Purchases and Bids of Goods, Works, and Nonprofessional Services of the General Services Administration of the Government of Puerto Rico", by virtue of the authority vested in it by Article 25 of Act 73-2019, as amended. The provisions of this Regulation shall apply to all procedures of purchases and bids of goods, works and nonprofessional services carried out by ASG.

2.2. Overview and Purpose

ASG is issuing this Request for Sealed Proposals ("RFP") on behalf of SHPO to invite interested Proponents ("Bidders") to submit proposals for the replacement and removal of passenger and service elevators at Cuartel de Ballajá in Old San Juan.

El Cuartel de Ballajá was built from 1854 to 1864 by Spanish militia. Used until 1898 as an infantry barrack to accommodate around 1,000 Spanish soldiers and their families. Other than the housing facilities, the barracks had storage rooms, kitchens, mess halls, dungeons, and horse stables. Its vast interior patio is one of the best examples of 19th-century Spanish architecture in the New World.

The Government of Puerto Rico acquired the building in 1976 through a transfer from the Government of the United States with the commitment of restoring it and using for cultural, educative, and touristic purposes. It is currently managed by SHPO.

In 2017, due to hurricane María this historical building suffered severe damages. A portion of the Hurricane damage was classified by SHPO/FEMA in the project's scope of work as follows:

Removal and Replacement of Elevators (FEMA Ref. No. 155275)

3. Instructions to Proponents

3.1. RFP Process Administration

This RFP process will be administered by the ASG on behalf of SHPO. All communications regarding this RFP process must be directed to ASG using the communication protocols identified in Sections 3.4 (Requests for Clarification) and 3.6 (Pre-Proposal Meeting). Contact with the Government of Puerto Rico and any of its agencies, municipalities, and instrumentalities regarding this RFP (via e-mail, fax, phone, text messaging, or any other form of live or electronic communication) will not be permitted. Any contracts resulting from this process will be between



Bidders and SHPO.

3.2. RFP Timeline

The timeline for this RFP is presented below in **Table 1**. All items must be received by the stated deadline.

Table 1- RFP General Timeline

Target Date	Event
December 16, 2021	Issuance of RFP
December 20, 2021	Mandatory Pre-Proposal Meeting – 2:00 p.m. (Atlantic)
December 21, 2021	Mandatory Site Visit – 10:30 a.m. (Atlantic)
December 22, 2021	Last Day to Submit Questions (Request for Clarification) – 3:00 p.m.
	(Atlantic): rfpquestions@asg.pr.gov
January 11, 2022	Proposal Submission Deadline – 10:00 a.m. (Atlantic): at the Bid
	Board Office, Minillas Government Center, North Tower, 12 th Floor, San
	Juan, Puerto Rico and by email to ofertas@asg.pr.gov
January 11, 2022	Opening of Proposals – 2:30 p.m. (Atlantic)

Please note that the RFP timeline includes target dates that are subject to change. It is the responsibility of Bidders to periodically review their emails and the ASG website (www.asg.pr.gov/ReformaCompras/Pages/default.aspx) in the folder titled 21-003-OECH-R1 for all information and updates related to this RFP.

3.3. Proposal Submission

Proposals must be submitted on or before the date and time established in Table 1 in Section 3.2, in the following two manners:

- **Physical proposal** delivered to ASG, Office of the Secretary of the Bid Board at the Minillas Government Center, North Tower, 12th floor, San Juan, Puerto Rico; and
- Electronic proposal sent to the following email address: ofertas@asg.pr.gov

Proposals will not be evaluated until after the day and time established as Proposal Due Date in Table 1, Section 3.2.

3.3.1. Physical Proposal

All bidders must submit their physical proposal in a sealed envelope to the Office of the Secretary of the Bid Board at the location described above. The sealed envelope shall be identified with the:

- Name of Bidder Organization;
- Address of Bidder Organization;



- Telephone of Bidder Organization; and
- RFP number.

Upon receipt of the envelope, the Secretary will proceed to mark it with the exact date and time it was received, which will constitute the original delivery date of the proposal. The submitted physical version of proposal will be considered as the official proposal. Any proposal received without the proper identification as established herein will be processed as regular correspondence. Under this circumstance, the Bid Board will not be responsible if the Bidder loses the opportunity to present the proposal on time, nor will it be able to require that bidder's proposal be made known or impute that the proposal has been disclosed or opened by deadline. Furthermore, the bidder may be disqualified for not attaching all the required documents to his proposal.

3.3.2. Electronic Proposal

For submission of the electronic version of proposal, the Bidder shall include the following language in the email subject line:

Attention: Secretary of the Bid Board: Response to RFP 21-003-OECH-R1 from <Bidder name>

The email shall include the proposal as an attachment (in pdf format) containing the corresponding items listed in **Attachment A** (Bidder Proposal Checklist) requiring submittal (also in pdf format unless specified otherwise). The same should be a faithful and exact copy of the physically submitted documents and shall include a certification crediting such act. As an exception, if the size of the content surpasses the space available via email, the attachments should be delivered with the physical submission of the proposal.

3.3.3. Redacted Proposal

All Bidders are required to submit a redacted copy of their proposal that excludes all confidential information not to be made public. If no identifiable redacted copy of the proposal is included with the submission, ASG will consider the submitted copy as both the redacted and un-redacted copy of the proposal. If the proposal is submitted multiple times, ASG will only accept the latest version submitted before the deadline.

ASG reserves the right to make public the redacted copies of the proposals at the conclusion of the RFP process. If a Bidder does not submit a redacted copy, ASG will assume that the original copy of the proposal can be made public. Hence, the un-redacted copy of the proposal should identify all confidential information and the redacted copy of the proposal should exclude all confidential information not to be public. Any information not identified as confidential in the un-redacted proposal will be deemed as not confidential.

3.4. Requests for Clarification (RFCs)

Requests for Clarifications and Questions relating to this RFP must be submitted via email to rfpquestions@asg.pr.gov no later than the date and time established in Table 1 in Section 3.2. Submitted questions should make reference to the RFP number and provide the point of contact for the prospective Bidder.



ASG will compile all questions and issue answers to all questions to prospective Bidders on its website (www.asg.pr.gov/ReformaCompras/Pages/default.aspx) in the folder titled RFP: 21-003-OECH-R1. Bidders are expected to download from the ASG website the Requests for Clarification Response Document containing all the answers to the Requests for Clarification submitted by all the Bidders. Bidders must acknowledge that they have read the answers to the questions by including the acknowledgment language in **Attachment B** as identified in Section 5.2.

From the time the RFP is issued until the time an award is made, vendors may not in any way contact ASG or SHPO directly. Questions regarding the RFP may only be asked through the provided e-mail. Questions asked through e-mail will only be answered if they are sent to the e-mail address stated above for asking questions and will only be answered if sent within the allotted date and time stated above for asking clarifying questions. Proponents must not contact ASG or SHPO in any other way. This includes in-person visits, phone calls, text messages, e-mails, or any other form of communication. Please do not call with questions as they will not be answered by phone.

3.5. Site Visit

ASG will coordinate with SHPO a visit to the site to allow interested bidders to see the current conditions of the project site for the scope of work required. This **site visit** is **mandatory** and will be held on the day and time established in Table 1 in Section 3.2. Any bidder who submits a proposal but does not attend the site visit will be disqualified.

3.6. Pre-Proposal Meeting

The virtual pre-proposal meeting will be held on the day and time established in Table 1 in Section 3.2. Any bidder or interested person will be able to access the pre-proposal meeting link through the ASG's website in the "Procurement Reform" area at the following link: (http://www.asg.pr.gov/ReformaCompras/Pages/default.aspx#) in the folder titled RFP: 21-003-OECH-R1.

The primary purpose of the pre-proposal meeting is to clarify instructions for completing the technical sections of the RFP and the Cost Form, as well as to provide further clarification to RFP requirements and existing questions.

Participation in the pre-proposal meeting is **mandatory**, **and all interested bidders have to access the meeting before the conference starts**. The registration process for the meeting will begin at least five (5) minutes before the time scheduled for the pre-proposal meeting. Participants are encouraged to actively participate to maximize the opportunity to communicate directly with the government and have questions answered regarding the RFP. Any answers provided during the pre-proposal meeting will be included in written responses to Request for Clarifications published by ASG, and only written responses by ASG will serve as binding responses.

Any bidder who submits a proposal but does not attend the pre-proposal meeting will be disqualified. At the beginning of the pre-proposal meeting, the name of the duly registered bidders will be notified. The bidder who accesses the conference after the start time will be disqualified.

3.7. Registration in "Registro Único de Licitadores (RUL)"

Any Bidder interested in contracting with the Government must be registered in the "Registro Único



de Licitadores" (RUL) in accordance with the specifications provided in the RUL registration requirements. Bidders can access the RUL through the following link: https://rul.asg.pr.gov/

It is a mandatory requirement for any natural or legal person interested in participating in procurement processes for goods, services and works with the Government of Puerto Rico to be registered in the RUL with all up-to-date certifications of eligibility requirements. Registration in the RUL must be active, and all documents required for active registration must be up to date.

When a Proposer that is not registered in the RUL appears in the RFP process and presents an offer, that Proposer should not be rejected by the Bid Board and will be granted a period of **five** (5) **business days**, starting from the Opening of Proposals, to submit the required documents to the RUL. If the proposer does not submit the required documents, he will be disqualified. *See Regulation No.* 9230, Section 7.4.11.

Any Bidder or Proposer 1) registered in the RUL; 2) who has presented an offer for the request; and 3) after the Opening of Proposals is found ineligible, will have **five** (5) **non extendable business days**, starting on the Opening of Proposals, to submit the corresponding information or documents to the RUL. During said period, no award will be made. It will be the responsibility of the Secretary of the Bid Board and the Procurement Specialist to notify the Bidder/Proposer, through a phone call and email, so that within the term provided they update their records in the RUL. The Bidder/Proposer must submit all the requested documents and certifications, and comply with all requisites, terms, and conditions established in the RFP at the moment of submitting the offer. No document will be accepted by a Bidder or Proposer after the opening, except for the RUL's certification of eligibility, which will be subject to presentation during the time afore stated. The ineligible bidder will not be visible in the RUL; hence, will not be contracted by any of the Executive Branch agencies, public corporations, or municipalities. Ineligibility will be maintained until the Bidder complies with the requirement of information or the presentation of the solicited documents. The Bidder/Proposer must sustain the status of eligibility in the RUL before the awarding of the proposal. See Uniform Regulation No. 9230 from November 18, 2020.

3.8. Universal Identifier and System for Award Management

Prior to submitting a proposal, Bidders are required to register in the System for Award Management (SAM) as stated in 2 CFR, Subtitle A, Chapter 25. The following link can be used for the registration: https://www.sam.gov/SAM/pages/public/index.jsf.

3.9. Bidder Point of Contact & Signature

All submitted proposals must provide a clear point of contact for the organization that includes:

- Name of Bidder Organization;
- Name of point of contact for Proposal;
- Email address and postal address of point of contact;
- Telephone of the point of contact; and
- Universal Identifier Code from SAM.

Proposals that do not identify a point of contact and contact information will be rejected. This information will be provided in **Attachment B** (refer to Section 5.2). The attachment must be signed



with indelible ink or blue pen by an authorized representative of the Bidder. The authorized representative must be the same point of contact registered in the RUL. Electronic signatures that comply with this requirement are accepted.

3.10. Addendum

ASG or SHPO may modify the RFP prior to the date established for submission of proposals by the issuance of an addendum. Any addendum to these documents will be issued in writing and will be posted on the ASG website (www.asg.pr.gov/ReformaCompras/Pages/default.aspx) in the folder titled RFP: 21-003-OECH-R1. Any Addendum or changes to the RFP Bid Package will be communicated to all vendors registered in the RUL. No oral statements, explanations, or commitments by anyone will be in effect unless incorporated in the written addendum. Receipt of Addendum must be acknowledged by the Bidder in **Attachment B**.

4. Scope of Work

4.1. General Scope of Work

This RFP seeks to receive responses from Bidders who want to be considered for the removal and replacement of passenger and service elevators at Cuartel de Ballajá with SHPO. The work to be undertaken includes, but may not be limited to:

The removal and replacement of the passenger and service elevators to achieve a condition consistent with their previous state while hardening them to better withstand similar storm events in the future.

The work must be completed in a period of time equal or less than 225 calendar days.

The Selected Bidder or Contractor is accountable for completing all of the project requirements indicated in the RFP and Bid Package and shall build, furnish, install, and complete all project components detailed below. Contractor is responsible for filing all applicable permits and endorsements needed to start site work and construction. Contractor is responsible for the payment of all applicable construction permits and endorsement fees, including Department of Transportation of Public Works (DTPW) bonds, agency contributions (PREPA, PRASA, etc.) and taxes.

The provisions of Act 218-2010, known as the "Act for Uniform Documents for Contracting of Programming, Management, Design, Inspection and Construction of Public Works in Puerto Rico" or "Uniform Contracting Act", shall prevail in that pertaining to this matter. Also, the provisions of the Puerto Rico Construction Code shall be observed.

4.2. Technical Specifications

Under this contract, work must consist of all labor, equipment, fuel, traffic control costs, and other associated incidental costs necessary to complete the Bid Items. As provided herein, debris disposal fees, recycling fees and permitting fees will be borne by the Contractors and reimbursed at cost, without markup, by SHPO. Additional scope and bid notes have been provided at the end of this section. The work to be undertaken includes, but may not be limited to:



• Two elevators will be replaced at the Cuartel de Ballajá building, one is for passengers and other for cargo.

The passenger elevator should comply with the following minimum features presented in **Table 2.**

 Table 2- Passenger Elevator Specifications

Table 2- Passenger Elevator Specifications			
Feature	Specification		
Model	Gearless Traction Machine Room Less		
Load	2,500 lbs		
Speed	150 fpm		
Travel	35'-7"		
Stops & Opgs	3 in line		
Power Supply	208 or 480 Volts, 3 phase, 60 cycle		
Operation	Simplex		
Controller	Controller will be "integrated" to front elevator frame wall at top landing /		
Location	Minimum wall width -8 ½"-9"		
Cab Height	8'-0"		
Car Enclosure:			
Walls	Vertical Flush Plastic laminate peels		
Car Enclosure:	Suspended downlight ceiling with #4 Stainless Steel frame finish and fluorescent		
Ceiling	lightning		
Front Return			
Panels	#4 Stainless Steel		
Car Door	#4 Stainless Steel		
Sills	Aluminum		
Handrails	One Stainless Steel #4 cylindrical handrail at rear wall		
Hoistway Doors	Center Opening 3'-6" wide x 7'-0 high. #4 Stainless Steel finish		
Platform interior	6'-8" wide x 4'-3" deep		
Overhead	13'-0" underhoist beam / 13'-8" underside roof		
Pit	5'-0"		
Existing Shaft	8'-4 ½" wide x 7'-0" deep		
	Handicapped Requirements & ADA		
	ADA Phone		
	Two Speed Fan		
	Firefighters Services Phase I & II		
	Door Protection Safety Edge		
Other Features	Standby Power Operation		
	Independent Service		
	Seismic Sensor Controller Provisions		
	Seismic Sensor Included		
	Pad & Buttons		
	Pit Ladder		

The freight/service elevator should comply with the following minimum features presented in **Table 3.**



Table 3- Freight/Service Elevator Specifications

Table 3- Freight/Service Elevator Specifications			
Feature	Specification		
Model	Roped Hydraulic Elevator		
Load	8,000 lbs		
Speed	100 fpm		
Travel	35'-7"		
Stops & Opgs	3 in line		
Power Supply	208 or 480 Volts, 3 phase, 60 cycle		
Operation	Simplex		
M/R Location	Adjacent to hoistway at 1st		
Cab Height	8'-0"		
Car Enclosure			
Walls	#4 Stainless Steel		
Car Enclosure:			
Ceiling	Suspended acrylic ceiling with aluminum frame finish and fluorescent lighting		
Car Door	#4 Stainless Steel		
Floor finish	Aluminum checker plate (1/4")		
Sills	Aluminum		
Handrails	Three Stainless Steel #4 Flat 3/8" x 2" handrails Bumper rails (3) 1 ½" x 8" Wood Bar		
Hoistway Doors	Center Opening Two Speed 5'-0" wide x 7'-0" high. #4 Stainless Steel finish		
Signals	Position Indicator in car and at main floor. Hall stations all landings.		
Platform interior	9'-4" wide x 8'-8" deep		
Existing Overhead	16'-1"		
Existing Pit	4'-10"		
Existing Shaft	12'-0" wide x 11'-5" deep		
_	Handicapped Requirements & ADA		
	ADA Phone		
	Two Speed Fan		
	Firefighters Services Phase I & II		
	Door Protection Safety Edge		
Other Features	Standby Power Operation		
	Independent Service		
	Seismic Sensor Controller Provisions		
	Seismic Sensor Included		
	Pad & Buttons		
	Pit Ladder		

5. Proposal Content Requirements

Proposals to be evaluated. The Government will evaluate proposals in the following areas: 1) Cost Proposal; 2) Project Schedule and Milestones; 3) Proposed Approach and Key Personnel; 4) Firm Experience and Financial Capacity; and 5) Proposed Inclusion of Small, Minority, and Women-Owned Businesses.

The proposal shall be clear, concise, and include sufficient detail for an effective evaluation, and for substantiating the validity of stated claims. Proposals shall not simply rephrase or restate the Government's requirements, but rather shall provide a convincing rationale to address how the Bidder intends to meet the requirements. Bidders shall assume that the Government has no prior knowledge



of their experience or best practices, and that qualifications and past performance reviews will be based only on the information presented in the Bidder's proposal. The Government reserves the right to request additional information that supports information presented by each proponent in the different sections.

The proposal submission must contain the sections detailed below and respect page limits stated for each section. Pages submitted in excess of the stated page limitations will not be considered and will not be evaluated. Pages shall be single-spaced in 8½ by 11-inch paper, with a minimum one-inch margin all around. Pages shall be numbered consecutively and use a 12-point font of *Times New Roman*. The proposal shall be submitted in *PDF* format.

All costs associated with the response to this RFP are the sole responsibility of the Bidder. Bidder's proposal shall follow the format, order and content described below.

5.1. Bidder Proposal Checklist

The Bidder must review and submit all documents and/or information identified in the Bidder Proposal Checklist (**Attachment A**) as part of their proposal submission. Bidder shall initialize each item listed and sign **Attachment A** as confirmation of proposal submission of all documents and information required by this RFP.

5.2. Bidder Summary Information and Addenda Acknowledgement

Proponent must complete and sign **Attachment B** (Bidder Summary and Addenda Acknowledgment). Bidder Summary Information requested in **Attachment B** includes the following:

- Name of Bidder Organization
- Employer Social Security
- Name of point of contact for Proposal
- Email address and postal address of point of contact
- Telephone of the point of contact
- Universal Identifier Code from SAM
- RFP Number
- RFP Submission Deadline Date and Time
- Signature of Point of Contact

Proponent must acknowledge receipt of all Request for Clarification Response Document(s) and all RFP Addenda by completing and signing **Attachment B**. This form must be completed regardless of if no addendum was issued for this RFP. **Attachment B** must be signed with indelible ink or blue pen by an authorized representative of the Bidder. The authorized representative must be the same point of contact registered in the RUL. Electronic signatures that comply with this requirement are accepted.

5.3. Proposal Transmittal Letter

Proponent must provide a Transmittal letter with a brief overview of the key elements of the Bidder's proposal and why the Bidder should be selected in a **maximum of two (2) pages**.



This letter must be signed by an official with the legal authority to bind the Proponent and must include a statement that the proposal and terms within are to be valid for a minimum of one-hundred and twenty (120) days.

5.4. Firm Experience and Financial Capacity

All of the information solicited under this section (Firm Experience and Financial Capacity) must be presented in a maximum of 30 pages (with the exception of last Audited Company Financial Statements).

5.4.1. Business Profile

Proponent must provide a business profile with detailed information identifying firm, including:

- Name of Business and/or Firm
- Name of other associated businesses, firms, and/or professionals
- Name of owner/s and/or principals
- Office location address
- Type of organization
- Services provided by business
- Years in business
- Organizational Chart of the business
- Registered Organizational Documents (Good Standing)
- Professional Business licenses and credentials

Proponent shall provide an overview of the business and number of years in service. Proponent shall describe the past history and experience of the firm as it relates to the proposed scope of work, specifically focusing on works Proponent believes demonstrates their relevant qualifications and experience. Any proposed contracting of a subcontractor must be named and identified, along with a description of the firm's experience and what role they will play in the Bidder's team.

Bidders that are Puerto Rico based corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, or any other legal entity, shall be duly and properly organized and/or registered in compliance with the applicable laws of Puerto Rico. Such entities must show that they are in "good standing" at the time of Bid submission. The Bidder must submit organizational documents which will vary by the Bidder type of organization. Such documents may include (but are not limited to) Certificates of Incorporation, Partnership Agreements, Joint Venture Agreements, and Certificates of Good Standing.

In the event the Bidder is a foreign legal entity, including U.S. based entities, it shall be duly and properly organized and/or registered in compliance with the applicable laws of its place of organization and/or incorporation. Such entities must show that they are in "good standing" within their jurisdiction at the time of Bid submission. If a Contract is awarded to a foreign entity Bidder, said Bidder shall request authorization to do business in Puerto Rico previous to the execution of the Contract.



If applicable, Bidders must ensure at all times that professional, architectural or engineering services is performed by licensed professionals with the proper qualifications, skills and experience necessary to perform the services, according to applicable regulations.

5.4.2. Comparable Project Experience

Proponent must provide project experience information for at least two (2) **comparable projects** completed within the past 10 years of the RFP closing date by completing the **Comparable Project Fact Sheet** (Attachment C) for each project. The projects detailed in **Attachment** C shall be for executed work that is comparable to the one requested in this RFP (public sector clients preferred). These comparable project contacts shall be used as **business references**. Additionally, for each project, the contractor must undergo the due diligences to complete and submit the attached Past Performance Questionnaire (PPQ) form (refer to **Attachment D**). ASG personnel and the Bid Board may contact any of the references to verify information.

5.4.3. Business Financial Capacity

The Proponent must include a copy of the firm's most recent **Audited Company Financial Statements** (financial statement pages will not be considered toward 30 pages maximum for this section), along with a summary and any other relevant information that demonstrates that firm has adequate financial resources to perform services under the contract and pay employees and subcontractors even when awaiting payment of invoices under this engagement.

Year-End (fiscal or calendar) audited, reviewed or compiled financial statements for the most recent year issued by a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) and prepared in accordance with US Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (US GAAP). The financial statements must include a Balance Sheet, Statement of Operations, Statement of Cash Flows, and notes to the financial statements.

This Proponent must also include in this section a statement making a firm commitment that the Contractor will pay its employees and sub-contractors without regard to the timing of payment by SHPO and the Government of Puerto Rico.

5.5. Proposed Approach and Key Personnel

5.5.1. Project Approach Narrative

The Proponent shall present their proposed approach to successfully manage and execute the work detailed in this RFP to ensure efficiency, transparency, and positive outcomes. The Proponent shall present a Project Approach Narrative (**maximum of four (4) pages**) that indicates the proposed work plan to successfully perform the work activities. Proponents are encouraged to include information about any unique or specialized approach and/or capability they will bring to the engagement. The narrative should answer the following questions:

- Which project management approach(es) will be implemented?
- What methodology will be used for the construction of the project?
- What is the proposed method of construction?



- Which activities and/or techniques will be used to constitute a work team?
- How will you maintain a timely submittal of deliverables?
- How will you manage the current COVID-19 pandemic alongside on-site employees and other personnel?

5.5.2. Project Organizational Structure, Staffing Plan & Key Personnel

The Proponent must provide the proposed **Project Organizational Structure** and **Proposed Staffing Plan** (including number of personnel) that they anticipate utilizing to deliver the required services contemplated under this RFP.

The staffing plan need not be an exhaustive list of personnel to be assigned, however it must demonstrate the availability and qualifications of personnel to manage and lead each element of your proposed organizational structure. Bidder must describe their demonstrated capability to provide the required staffing with the qualifications required in this RFP throughout the term of the expected contract. This section must include a statement that clearly confirms that the personnel named and proposed are available and are committed to participate on-site in Puerto Rico in support of this project on a full-time basis.

Proponent must provide a **Resume** (2 page maximum per person) for each proposed team member that highlights relevant work experience. **Proponent must include Resumes for key management and leadership personnel and important project staff personnel.**

Key management and leadership personnel must not be removed from the project without prior written consent from SHPO, and without a suitable replacement with appropriate skills and experience (as determined by SHPO). SHPO reserves the right to disallow or remove personnel proposed or provided by the Bidder at its sole discretion.

In case that the bidder does not have the following key personnel on staff at the moment of proposal submission, the bidder must include in their proposal a certification stating: "If awarded, I will have the following key personnel resumes:"

- **Project Manager** must demonstrate no less than 5 years of experience in the indicated position.
- **Superintendent** must demonstrate no less than 5 years of experience in the indicated position and must always be present at the project site while work is carried out.
- Quality Control Officer must demonstrate no less than 5 years of experience in the indicated position and must always be present at the project site while work is carried out.
- **Health and Safety Officer** must demonstrate no less than 5 years of experience in the indicated position, must always be present at the project site while work is carried out, and must include OSHA 30-hour certificate and/or card.

If an individual is assigned to more than one position, it must be clearly indicated in bidder's response.

5.6. Project Schedule and Milestones



The Bidder must include the proposed detailed project schedule as part of their proposal and must consider all activities that are necessary and impact the time to complete the work. The detailed project schedule must be presented by levels with high-level tasks broken down with their respective activities, and demonstrate interrelationships and time to complete activities, tasks, and overall project. Bidder must identify specific project monthly milestones and project deliverables showing the most important tasks to be completed in schedule.

5.7. Cost Proposal

The Proponent must provide a Lump Sum price for all the services required for this project in this RFP, using the attached **Cost Form** to detail cost breakdown. There is no page limit. Proponent must fill in each blank space available in the Cost Form to identify all unit prices solicited in form.

It is understood that the quoted price shall include all labor, equipment, materials, incidental work, overhead, profit, insurance, bonds, mobilization, demobilization, subcontractor work, personnel lodging and meals, materials laboratory testing, etc. to cover the desired scope of work. The Bidder's Lump Sum price shall include the cost of municipal taxes and patents ("arbitrios de construcción y patentes municipales"). ¹Any and all costs for scope of services must be included in lump sum price in the Cost Form included in Attachment E.

5.8. Proposed Inclusion of Small, Minority and Woman-Owned Businesses

5.8.1. Overview & Purpose

The work to be performed under the contract resulting from this RFP shall be subject to the regulations set forth in the 2 C.F.R. §200.321, which require the non-federal entity to take necessary steps to ensure that all Subrecipients, Contractors, Sub-Contractors, and/or Developers funded in whole or in part with federal funds, when possible, contracts and other economic opportunities are directed to small and minority firms, women owned business enterprises (WBEs), and labor surplus area firms. Consistent with Executive Orders No. 11625, 12138, and 12432, the subrecipient shall make every feasible effort to ensure that small businesses, minority-owned business enterprises (MBEs), WBEs, (together M/WBEs), and labor surplus area businesses participate in contracting.

ASG recognizes its obligation to promote opportunities for maximum feasible participation of certified Minority and Women Owned Business Enterprises (MBE/WBE's), and the employment of minority group members and women in the performance of the contracts.

Consistent with the provisions of 2 CFR 200.321, SHPO desires that minority business enterprises have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of this contract and will:

 Promote affirmatively (where feasible) in accordance with all applicable Puerto Rico Laws, together with all other applicable laws, statutes and constitutional provisions the procurement of goods or services in connection with recovery projects for minority owned business enterprises;

¹ This building is "historic", therefore it has a fifty percent (50%) discount on municipal construction taxes.



- Ensure that competitive and equitable bidding opportunities are followed to afford minority business enterprises participation. Strive to obtain contract and subcontract awards to minority business enterprises;
- Identify and communicate to the minority business enterprises community procedures and contract requirements necessary for procurement of goods and services for reconstruction projects and subcontracts;
- Promulgate and enforce contractual requirements that the general contractor or all construction projects must exercise all necessary and reasonable steps to ensure that minority business enterprises participate in the work required in such construction contracts.

In addition, SHPO will also adhere to and require the Contractors to follow 2 CFR 200.321 requirements which include:

- 1. Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists;
- 2. Assuring that small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources;
- 3. Dividing total tasks, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises;
- 4. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, to encourage participation by small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises;
- 5. Using the services and assistance of such organizations as the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the U.S. Department of Commerce, as appropriate;
- 6. Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be awarded, to take the five previous affirmative steps.

All participating entities engaged with SHPO must make a commitment and demonstrate an acceptable "Good Faith Effort" toward the achievement of contracting M/WBE's.

5.8.2. Identifying M/WBEs

In this section M/WBE firms are identified as per the federally recognized definitions. M/WBE certifications are provided by federal, state, and local agencies, and private institutions.

Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) is defined as a business which is at least fifty one percent (51%) owned, operated, and controlled on a daily basis by one or more (in combination) American citizens of ethnic minority and/or gender (e.g. woman-owned) and/or military veteran classifications.

Ethnic minorities businesses include business where owner or principal shareholder(s) pertain to one of the following ethnic groups: Hispanics, Black Americans, Native Americans. Asian, Asian Pacific, or Hasidic Jews.

MBEs should maintain the size standards that define a small business as defined in Title 13, Chapter 1, Part 121 of the Electronic Code of Regulations (https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-10



bin/text-

<u>idx?SID=0ff5f0839abff4eec707b4478ed733c6&mc=true&node=pt13.1.121&rgn=div5</u> <u>se13.1.121_1101</u>).

A Women Business Enterprise (WBE) is a business concern that is at least fifty one percent (51%) owned and controlled by one or more women. The business must be a small business owned by U.S. citizens or Legal Resident Aliens, whose business formation and principal place of business are in the U.S. or its territories and whose management and daily operation is controlled by women.

The Small Business Administration (SBA) offers information on their site regarding qualification requirements for:

- The 8(a) Business Development (BD) Program which offers assistance to firms that are owned and controlled, at least fifty one percent (51%), by socially and economically disadvantaged individual(s);
- The Women-Owned Small Business (WOSB) program which allows set-asides for WOSBs in industries where firms are underrepresented. WOSBs must be at least fifty one percent (51%) owned and controlled by women; or
- The Historically Underutilized Business Zone (HUBZone) Program allows federal contract set-asides for small businesses in economically depressed communities.

The SBA application process begins with a preliminary assessment located at https://certify.sba.gov/am-i-eligible. For more information you can visit the local SBA district office for Puerto Rico and the US Virgin Islands: 273 Ponce de León Ave., Plaza 273, Suite, 510 San Juan, PR; Phone: 787-766-5572; Fax: 787-766-5309.

The Puerto Rico Minority Business Development Agency (MBDA), an agency of the U.S. Department of Commerce, is also a resource for businesses regarding M/WBE certifications: https://mbdapr.com/.

Puerto Rico's Minority Supplier Development Council (PRMSDC) additionally provides businesses technical assistance and has an MBE application and certification process which can be located at: https://www.prmsdc.org/content.cfm?mhid=27&miid=83. PRMSDC is located: 1225 Ponce de León Ave. VIG Tower, Suite 1505, Santurce, PR 00907-3921; Phone: 787-627-7272; website address: https://www.prmsdc.org/index.cfm.

Certified Minority or Women Owned Businesses can also be those who have filed and approved Applications with the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) the Office of Small Business Programs (OSBP). Applications can be obtained from EPA OSBP, from regional Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Coordinators, and from EPA OSBP's website, www.epa.gov/osbp.

5.8.3. Preference Points

Proposers seeking M/WBE preference should provide a copy of their M/WBE certification to evidence their status. ASG shall provide a preference of up to five (5) additional points in the evaluation criteria of the method of rating proposals, for participation of M/WBE Registered



Puerto Rico Business. Businesses providing evidence and proof of these certifications completed and approved by the corresponding entity will be formally acknowledged as Minority or Women Owned Business Enterprises for the purpose of assigning preference points in the evaluation of proposals.

All participating entities engaged with SHPO must make a commitment and demonstrate an acceptable "Good Faith Effort" toward the achievement of contracting M/WBE's.

If the Proposer does not have a M/WBE certification as Contractor, or within their proposed subcontracted entities, the Contractor must complete **Attachment F** (**M/WBE Efforts**) detailing efforts made to include and have Minority Business Enterprises and Women Business Enterprises participate in the work required in this contract.

Nothing herein shall require SHPO to award contracts for services or procurements to a minority and/or women-owned business enterprise that is not also a qualified, responsive and responsible Contractor.

5.9. Bid Bond

In accordance with 2 CFR 200.325, the minimum bonding requirements are as follows:

A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five percent (5%) of the bid price. The "bid guarantee" must consist of a firm commitment such as a bid bond, certified check, or other negotiable instrument accompanying a bid as assurance that the bidder will, upon acceptance of the bid, execute such contractual documents as may be required within the time specified.

The Proponent must submit a **Bid Bond in original** for five percent (5%) of the bid price accompanied by the **Bid Bond Form** (**Attachment G**). If the bond is presented through an insurance company, it will be in favor of the "Administración de Servicios Generales" and if it is presented by certified check or money order, it will be in favor of the Secretary of the Treasury. The Bid Bond will be presented at the same time the proposal is submitted or annually by means of a lump sum.

Bonds for amounts less than required will not be accepted. Failure to comply with this requirement will lead to the **rejection** of the offer or proposal or the cancellation of the award. All bonds will be guarded by ASG's Finance Division. When ASG or the Bid Board decides to cancel the RFP, all bid bonds will be returned within a term of three (3) business days after the corresponding notification.

6. Bid Evaluation, Selection, and Award

ASG will review all qualified responses to this RFP and the ASG Bid Board will select the proposal that it determines to be in the best public interest in accordance with the intent of this RFP. All proposals will first be screened for completeness and adherence to the requirements of this RFP. ASG will not consider substantively incomplete or non-responsive proposals. A non-responsive proposal is a proposal that was not submitted in a timely manner, or that fails to meet the material terms and conditions of this RFP as determined by the Government of Puerto Rico.

ASG reserves the right to waive any informality in any proposal and to accept any proposal which it considers to be in the best public interest, and to reject any or all proposals. The decision of ASG in



this regard will be final.

The proposals received in response to this RFP will be evaluated and ranked by a Proposal Evaluation Committee in accordance with the evaluation criteria detailed below. After thoroughly reading and reviewing this RFP, the Evaluation Committee will score the responses to the scope of work as outlined in Section 5.0 (Proposal Content Requirements).

6.1. Evaluation Criteria

An Evaluation Committee will score proposals based on criteria listed below in **Table 4**. Evaluation factors will include, but are not limited to, the following:

Table 4– Evaluation Criteria

Tubic : Evaluation Citiona		
CRITERIA	WEIGHT	
Firm Experience and Financial Capacity	20	
Proposed Approach and Key Personnel	20	
Project Schedule and Milestones	25	
Cost Proposal	35	
TOTAL:	100	
Proposed Inclusion of Small, Minority, and Women-Owned	5	
Business (Preference Points)		
GRAND TOTAL:	105	

6.2. Evaluation Scorecard

Point assignments for each evaluation criterion, **except for the Cost Proposal criterion**, will be based on the following guidelines:

Table 5– Evaluation Scorecard

Outstanding	Responses received are excellent and represent an
(100% of Maximum Score for a Criterion)	outstanding quality of work. The answers to the questions
	meet all the service expectations required by SHPO.
Good (75% of Maximum Score for a Criterion)	Responses received are positive and represent a good quality of work. The answers to the questions meet most of the service expectations required by SHPO.
Acceptable (50% of Maximum Score for a Criterion)	Responses received are neutral and represent an acceptable quality of work. The answers to the questions meet some of the service expectations required by SHPO.
Deficient (25% of Maximum Score for a Criterion)	Responses received are poor and represent a deficient quality of work. The answers to the questions meet few of the service expectations required by SHPO.
Unacceptable (0% of Maximum Score for a Criterion)	Responses received are negative and represent an unacceptable quality of work. The answers to the questions do not meet the service expectations required by SHPO.



6.3. Cost Proposal Evaluation

The Cost Proposals will be scored using a standard quantitative calculation where the most points are awarded to the lowest cost and/or the proposal that offers the best value to the Government of Puerto Rico. The Proposer that offers the lowest cost and/or the best value will receive the highest score in this criterion. The rest of the Proposers will receive their score in accordance with their ranking in descending order.

Prices will be evaluated for reasonableness and fairness. However, it is possible that an award may not go to the Qualified Proposer with the lowest price if, in the judgment of the Bid Board or the ASG, a higher priced Proposer offers the best overall value to the Government when also considering the rest of the evaluation criteria.

6.4. Initial Evaluation

Upon completion of scoring, the Evaluation Committee will prepare an evaluation recommendation document with the signature of all Evaluation Committee members and submit it to the Bid Board for their review and evaluation. The Bid Board will make the final decision of award. All Bidders will receive a copy of the final determination.

Total point assignments for each criterion will be added together for a total overall score for each Bidder. The total score for each Bidder will determine the ranking order of all Bidders.

The Bid Board reserves the right to determine the suitability of proposals on the basis of a proposal complying with administrative requirements, technical requirements, the Evaluation Committee's assessment of the proposal, the expected performance of the services proposed, and cost.

6.5. Award Procedures

The award will be made to the proposal that represents the best value to the Government of Puerto Rico and is also in the best interest of the Government of Puerto Rico. The awards will be made by the Bid Board. The Bid Board reserves the right to accept other than the most financially advantageous proposal. The Bid Board reserves the right to accept or reject all proposals, to waive any informality in proposals, and unless otherwise specified in writing by the Bidder, to accept any items in any proposal. Since the Bid Board may choose to award a contract without engaging in discussions or negotiations, the proposal submitted must present and define Bidder's best offer for performing the services described in this RFP.

The Bid Board may, at its discretion, require one or more Bidders to appear before an Evaluation Committee for an interview or to make a presentation to clarify the contents of their proposal. During such interview, the Bidder may be required to orally and otherwise present its proposal and to respond in detail to any questions posed. Additional meetings may be held to clarify issues or to address comments, as deemed appropriate. Bidders will be notified in advance of the time and format of such meetings. The purpose of each meeting shall be to clarify and ensure understanding of the requirements of the contract; improve the technical aspects of the proposal in an effort to lead them to comply with the performance specifications and requirements and/or reduce the price; discuss the data that justify the price and the details pertaining to each proposal that can improve it.



The Proponents whose offers comply with the provisions established in the Bid Package will be given fair and equal treatment with regard to the opportunity to discuss and revise the proposals. However, as the information that is addressed in said meetings may vary in relation to each Proponent, the revisions and discussions shall be based on facts and circumstances particular to each proposal. The Bidder shall put into writing any substantive verbal clarification of a proposal. Should discussions and negotiations be held, the Auxiliary Administration of Acquisitions or the Bid Board may request that the Bidders whose proposals comply with the provisions of the Bid Package submit amendments to the Proposals ("Best and Final Offer" or "BAFO") that respond to the discussions and negotiations that are conducted.

The commencement of such discussions, however, does not signify a commitment by SHPO or ASG to execute a contract or to continue discussions. ASG or the Bid Board may terminate discussions at any time and for any reason. A proposal may be rejected if it is incomplete. The Bid Board may reject any or all proposals and may waive any immaterial deviation in a proposal. Furthermore, the award notice of this proposal shall not constitute the formal agreement between the parties. It shall be necessary to execute the corresponding contract with SHPO.

More than one proposal from an individual, firm, partnership, corporation, or association under the same or different names, will not be considered. As the Bid Board may award a contract based on the initial proposal, a Bidder must make his initial offer on the most favorable terms available. The Bid Board reserves the right, however, to have discussions with those Bidders falling within a competitive range, and to request revised pricing offers from them and to make an award or conduct negotiations thereafter. The Bid Board may select and enter negotiations with the next most advantageous Bidder if negotiations with the initially chosen Bidder are not successful.

Once the Bid Board makes the corresponding award, they shall provide notice of their final determination by way of Ruling or Award Notice. The Ruling or Award Notice shall be properly notified, by federally certified mail with acknowledgement of receipt or e-mail to all the parties that are entitled to challenge such determination, namely, all the proponents who participated in the RFP process. The Award Notice must include: (i) the names of the Bidders that participated in the Request for Proposals or Request for Sealed Proposals and a summary of their proposals; (ii) the factors or criteria that were taken into account for the awarding of the proposal; (iii) the defects, if any, that the losing Bidders' proposals had, and (iv) the availability and the term for requesting an administrative review and judicial review. The Bid Board must file the final determination of the award and a record of the Award Notice.

It is the intent of SHPO to enter into a contract. Contents of the proposal must become contractual obligations if a contract ensues. Failure of the Bidder to honor these obligations may result in cancellation of the award. All processes are governed under Act 73-2019, as amended, and all applicable Federal rules and procedures.

7. RFP Process Requirements & Notices

7.1. Modification of Proposal

Only written requests for the modification or correction of a previously submitted proposal that are addressed in the same manner as proposal and are received prior to the closing time for receiving proposals will be accepted. The proposal must be corrected in accordance with such written requests,



provided that any such written request is plainly marked "Modification of Proposal #21-RFP-003-OECH-R1. Oral, telephone, or fax modifications or corrections will not be recognized or considered.

7.2. Withdrawal of Submitted Proposal

The withdrawal of a proposal may be carried out through written request addressed to the Auxiliary Administration of Acquisitions and/or the Bid Board, presented at any time prior to the opening. The proponent may not present a substitute proposal once their proposal for a certain RFP is withdrawn. No proponent may withdraw their offer or proposal after the opening.

7.3. Confidentiality of Responses and Proprietary Information

Trade secrets or proprietary information submitted by a firm in connection with a procurement transaction will not be subject to public disclosure. The firm must invoke the protection of this section prior to or upon submission of the data or other materials and must identify the data or other materials to be protected and state the reasons why protection is necessary. Each individual page considered a trade secret or proprietary information must be labeled "Confidential" in the top right corner. The Cost Form may not be proprietary. Bidders may not make their entire bid package or pricing confidential under this provision and SHPO reserves the right to evaluate and determine whether confidential designation is both appropriate and permissible.

Upon completion of this RFP process and after the award has been announced, ASG will make public its report regarding the selection process, which shall contain specific information included in the proposal and related to the process. ASG will not divulge information designated by the Bidder in the proposal as confidential, proprietary, or privileged if it is related to trade secrets, pricing, and proprietary or privileged information.

The Bid Board may reject proposals containing substantial contents marked as confidential, proprietary, or privileged. Provision of any information marked as confidential or proprietary shall not prevent ASG or the Bid Board from disclosing such information if required by law. The ultimately awarded contract(s) and all prices set forth therein shall not be considered confidential or proprietary, and such information may be made publicly available.

7.4. Ownership of Submitted Proposals

All materials submitted in response to this RFP shall become the property of ASG. Selection or rejection of a proposal does not affect this provision. All proposals submitted in response to this RFP may be subject to public review on the ASG website after awards have been made.

7.5. Amendments to RFP

ASG may amend the RFP up to five (5) business days prior to the opening of proposals when the amendment entails additional changes or requests that must be included in the proposal or three (3) business days before the opening of proposals when the amendment does not affect the presentation of offers.

7.6. Rejection of Proposals and Cancellation of RFP

ASG has the right to reject any or all proposals, to engage in further negotiations with any firm



submitting a proposal, and or to request additional information or clarification.

Issuance of this RFP does not constitute a commitment to award a contract. ASG reserves the right to accept or reject, in whole or in part, and without further explanation, any or all proposals submitted, and/or cancel this RFP and reissue it or another version of it, if ASG deems that doing so is in the best interest of the Government.

Additionally, the Government reserves the right to make investigations, as it deems necessary, as to the qualifications or perceived conflicts of interest of any and all Bidders submitting proposals in response to this RFP. Any appearance of a conflict of interest shall constitute sufficient cause for the outright rejection of a proposal(s). In the event that any or all proposals are rejected, the Government reserves the right to re-solicit proposals.

7.7. Errors and Omissions in Proposal

The Bid Board and ASG reserve the right to waive any minor format non-compliance and/or informalities of submitted proposals if doing so is in the best interest of the Government. The Bid Board reserves the right to reject a proposal that contains a substantial error or omission. The Bid Board also reserves the right to request correction of any errors or omissions and/or to request any clarification or additional information from any Bidder, without opening up clarifications for all Bidders.

7.8. Sub-Contractor/ Partner Disclosure

A single firm may propose the entire solution. If the proposal by any firm requires the use of sub-contractors, partners, and/or third-party products or services, this must be clearly stated in the proposal. The firm submitting the proposal must remain solely responsible for the performance of all work, including work that is done by sub-contractors. No additional sub-contractors or partners must be added to the Contractor's team after bid submittal except under rare circumstances, and only when fully justified to and expressly approved by SHPO.

7.9. Prohibited Communications

Communications with other representatives of the Government regarding any matter related to the contents of this RFP are prohibited during the submission and selection processes. Failure to comply with these communications restrictions may result in rejection of the proposal. Bidders should rely only on representations, statements, or explanations contained in this RFP, indocuments that ASG provides to Bidders and in any formal written addenda as may be issued by ASG or the Bid Board at any time during this RFP process.

7.10. Public Announcements

Any information or public announcement related to this RFP will be made by ASG through its website (www.asg.pr.gov/ReformaCompras/Pages/default.aspx). Any information or other public announcements related to this RFP shall not be made by any party, including Bidders, without the prior written approval of ASG.

7.11. Challenge to the Invitation and/or Bid Package



In the case that a Bidder/Proposer interested in participating in a bid process disagrees with the RFP Invitation, he will be able to settle personally before the ASG Procurement Area's Auxiliary Administrator the corresponding objection document, at the following email address: julioavg@asg.pr.gov, within **three** (3) **business days** following the date the Administration makes accessible the RFP Invitation. All objections to the RFP Invitation that fall outside the here established term will be rejected. The objection must comply with the established Regulation No. 9230, *supra*.

In the case that a Bidder/Proposer interested in participating in a bid process disagrees with the established final terms, instructions, specifications, or conditions in the RFP Document, he will be able to settle personally before the ASG Procurement Area's Auxiliary Administrator the corresponding objection document, at the following email address: julioavg@asg.pr.gov, within **three (3) business days** following the date the Administration makes accessible the RFP Document. All objections to the RFP Document that fall outside the here established term will be rejected. The objection must comply with the established Regulation No. 9230, *supra*.

7.12. Administrative and Judicial Review

The party adversely affected by a Bid Board decision, within the term of twenty (20) days from the Award Notice being sent by U.S. mail or e-mail, may present a written request for review before the Bid Review Board. Once the administrative review request has been submitted, the corresponding Bid Board will submit a certified copy of the case record to the Bid Review Board, within three (3) calendar days following the filing of the appeal.

The appellant shall provide notice with a copy of the request for administrative review to the Auxiliary Administration of Acquisitions and the Bid Board; they shall simultaneously also provide notice to the Bidder that was awarded the bid. This requirement is of a jurisdictional nature. In the review document itself, the appellant shall certify to the Review Board its compliance with this requirement. The notice must be provided through certified mail with acknowledgement of receipt and e-mail to: juntarevisora@asg.pr.gov. The appellant must provide notice, furthermore, to all the bidders that participated in the bidding process.

If so requested by the adversely affected party, the Auxiliary Administration of Acquisitions or the Bid Board, shall correspondingly provide them with both the mailing addresses and e-mail addresses that the participating providers have reported during the challenged bidding process. The presentation of a request for review before the Bid Review Board will have the effect of stopping the adjudication of the challenged proposal, until the Bid Review Board issues a final Resolution or rejects the plan review.

Pursuant to Section 4.2 of Act 38-2017, the party adversely affected by the decision of the Bid Review Board may file a review petition with the Court of Appeals within the term of twenty (20) days, counted from the filing of the copy of the notice of the final order or ruling of the Bid Review Board. The mere filing of this request for review shall not have the effect of placing a stay on the awarding of the challenged bid.

8. General Conditions and Requirements

8.1. Requirements by Contractor Type of Organization



The Contractor may be individuals doing business as Corporations, Partnerships or Joint Ventures duly organized under the laws of the Government of Puerto Rico, or foreign business organizations authorized to do business in Puerto Rico and registered under the Puerto Rico General Services Administration *Registro Unico de Licitadores* (Bidders Sole Register). Also, refer to Section 3.7 (Registration on RUL) above.

In order to participate in this RFP, it is mandatory for Individual entities, Partnerships or Joint Venture duly organized by the laws and regulations of Puerto Rico, (partnership LLP, LLC or Joint Venture) to be registered as such in the "Registro Único de Licitadores (RUL) de la Administración de Servicios Generales de Puerto Rico," except as provided by rules and regulations of ASG.

In the case of partnerships or joint ventures that have been formed by the constitution of a legal entity independent of its partners and registered in the Puerto Rico Department of State, it will be said legal entity that will be obliged to comply with each of the requirements required SHPO to participate in the RFP or the alternative method of selection chosen. New legal entities created within 18 months prior to the publication date of this RFP, will be evaluated on their individual members' experience, references and financial capacity.

All Contractors, if incorporated, must show they are in good standing with the Puerto Rico State Department ("State Department"). All Contractors that are foreign corporations (out-of-state) must file the necessary documents with the Division of Corporations of the State Department requesting authorization to do business in Puerto Rico, which must have been requested prior to the date of submission of the proposal. Failure to demonstrate compliance with this requirement may result in rejection of the Proposal without further consideration.

8.2. Contractors' Good Standing and Notification of Disbarments, Legal Issues, Ownership Structures, and Conflicts

If any of the Contractor's principals, officers, directors or partners has been debarred, suspended or otherwise lawfully precluded from participating in any public procurement activity, the Contractor must disclose that information in its proposal. Failure to provide such information and complete Attachment H, Contractor's Good Standing, Limited Denial of Participation (LDP)/Suspension or Debarment Status, Legal Issues, Ownership Structures, and Conflicts, will result in the rejection of the proposal. SHPO will corroborate this information.

Each Contractor's principals, officers, directors and partners must be in good standing with SHPO and the Government of Puerto Rico, and with any Federal or Local agency that has or had a contractual relationship with the Contractor or any of its principals, officers, directors and partners. Therefore, if a State, Federal or Local agency has terminated any contract with a Contractor for default, the Contractor will not be eligible to submit a proposal in response to this RFP.

In addition, each Contractor must certify that none of its principals, directors, officers or partners has been convicted or are under any investigation by any State, Federal forum, or in any other country, of the crimes identified under Law Number 2 of January 4th, 2018 (Anti-corruption code for the New Puerto Rico). Certifications must encompass the prior experience of any and all principals, officers, directors and partners of the Contractor, including prior corporate entities.

Further, the Contractor certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: No Federal



appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (refer to **Attachment I**).

In addition, the Contractor must disclose the following information as part of their proposal:

- Actual, apparent and potential conflicts;
- Ownership interests in businesses associated in any way with the program;
- Identification of Officers, Directors, and Partners of bidding entities; and
- Overlapping ownership interests or Directorships in other companies.

8.3. Contractor Certification Requirements

All Contractors are advised that the selected Contractor must comply with all public contracting requirements set forth in the Treasury Department's Circular Letter No. 1300-25-14, dated March 10, 2014, in connection with payment of income, and personal and real property taxes. The selected Contractors, upon Notice of Award, must submit all certifications required under the cited circular letter.

Also, the selected Contractors must be prepared to submit all certifications in compliance with Puerto Rico Treasury Department's requirements for contracting with the government regarding income and property (CRIM) taxes. These requirements are in accordance with Circular Letter No. 1300-13-97, dated April 11, 1997 stating instructions for the implementation of Administrative Bulletin No. OE-1991-24 from the Governor's Office dated August 18, 1991 amended by Administrative Bulletin No. OE-1992-52 from the Governor's Office dated August 28, 1992.

Required Certifications from the Selected Contractor: The selected Bidders must immediately submit the following certifications upon Notice of Award receipt:

- a) Last Five Years Income Tax Form Filing, Puerto Rico Internal Revenue Department (Hacienda) certification
- b) No Debt Certification, Puerto Rico Internal Revenue Department (Hacienda)
- c) Sales Tax Form Filing, Puerto Rico Internal Revenue Department (Hacienda)
- d) Sales Tax No Debt certification, Puerto Rico Internal Revenue Department (Hacienda)
- e) No Debt, Puerto Rico Municipal Taxes Collection Center (CRIM)
- f) Property Tax Form Filing, CRIM
- g) Employer Unemployment Filing, Puerto Rico Labor Department certification
- h) Driver (Chauffer) Insurance Filing, Puerto Rico Labor Department certification
- i) Minors Support Filing, ASUME certification
- j) Good Standing Certificate (corporations only), Puerto Rico Department of State
- k) Corporate Resolution or Sworn Statement authorizing officer to sign the contract
- 1) Sworn Statement, PR Law 2, January 4th, 2018 as amended
- m) The following key personnel resumes:
 - i. Project Manager



- ii. Superintendent
- iii. Quality Control Officer
- iv. Health and Safety Officer
- n) The list of any subcontractor, along with a description of subcontractor firms' experience and what role they will play on the Bidder's team.
- o) Any and all other documents required by the Puerto Rico General Services Administration.

By submitting a Proposal, Bidder agree that if their proposal is accepted, they will negotiate in good faith and enter into a contract with SHPO, for the term set forth in this RFP (as defined in the RFP), including all exhibits and attachments hereto. Each Bidder also accepts all terms and conditions of this RFP and any amendment thereof. The proposal and any additional information submitted by the Bidder or negotiated between Bidder and SHPO prior to selection, together with this RFP and any addenda hereto, will serve as confirmation of Bidders' acceptance of all terms and conditions therein.

8.4. Performance and Payment Bonds

Contractor must furnish a **Performance Bond** in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Price to secure fulfillment of all the contractor's requirements under such contract. Said bond will guarantee the execution of the contract. The bond must be in original.

Whoever is awarded the contract must submit a performance bond to the Auxiliary Administration of Acquisitions or the Bid Board, no later than ten (10) business days following the notification of the award. Said bond will guarantee the execution of the contract. The bond must be in original. If it is presented through an insurance company, it will be in favor of "Administración de Servicios Generales" and if it is presented by certified check or money order, it will be in favor of the Secretary of the Treasury.

Contractor must also furnish a **Payment Bond** in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Price to assure payment as required by law of all persons supplying labor and material in the execution of the work provided for in the contract.

These bonds must remain in effect until one year after the date when final payment becomes due or until completion of the correction period specified in the contract, whichever is later, except as provided otherwise by Laws and Regulations or by the Contract Documents. The Proponent must furnish the original of each required bond duly signed by an Attorney in Fact and countersigned by an authorized representative.

The Performance Bond and the Payment Bond must be executed by one or more surety companies legally authorized to do business in Puerto Rico, and must become effective upon activation of contract and issuance of a Notice to Proceed by SHPO. The surety bonds must be in the form set forth in SHPO Regulations without any variations therefrom or in any other form authorized by SHPO. The Bidder will be solely responsible for any costs associated with obtaining bonds.

All bonds submitted by the Contractor must be accompanied with the following documents:

- Power of Attorney in Fact;
- Acknowledgement of Surety; and



• Completed Official Form to be supplied by SHPO.

In addition, the Selected Bidder will be required to submit a verification letter annually from the surety company confirming that the Bidder is able to provide a payment and performance bond.

8.5. Insurance Requirements

The Bidder agrees that if selected, upon Contract Award and at Bidder's sole expense, Bidder must procure and maintain the following minimum insurances with insurers authorized to do business in Puerto Rico and provide insurance required by SHPO or the regulatory agency that granted the funds:

A. All insurance policy must be endorsed, specifically or generally, to include the following as Additional Insured:

SHPO, COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO, OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES ARE INCLUDED AS ADDITIONAL INSURED WITH RESPECT TO THE GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY.

- B. A minimum insurance of one million dollars (\$1,000.000.00) per occurrence with an aggregate policy limit of two million dollars (\$2,000,000.00) is required for each of the following types of insurance policies required:
 - Commercial General Liability
 - Automobile Liability
 - Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability
 - Professional Liability
 - C. Before commencement of any work or event, Bidder must provide a Certificate of Insurance in satisfactory form as evidence of the insurances required above.
 - D. Bidder must have no right of recovery or subrogation against SHPO (including its officers, agents, and employees), it being the intention of the parties that the insurance policies so affected must protect both parties and be primary coverage for any and all losses covered by the above-described insurance.
 - E. SHPO must have no liability with respect to Bidder's personal property whether insured or not insured. Any deductible or self-insured retention is the sole responsibility of Bidder.
 - F. Notwithstanding the notification requirements of the Insurer, Bidder hereby agrees to notify SHPO's Insurance Manager two (2) days of the cancellation or substantive change of any insurance policy set out herein. SHPO, in its sole discretion, may deem failure to provide such notice as a breach of this Agreement.
 - G. The Certificate of Insurance must note in the Description of Operations the following:



Agency:	
Contract #:	

- H. Insurance procured by Bidder must not reduce nor limit Bidder's contractual obligation to indemnify, save harmless and defend SHPO for claims made or suits brought which result from or are in connection with the performance of this Agreement.
- I. Certificate Holder must be listed as follows:

SHPO

Attention: SHPO Director

Cuartel de Ballajá

San Juan, Puerto Rico

J. If Contractor is authorized to assign or subcontract any of its rights or duties hereunder and in fact does so, Contractor must ensure that the assignee or subcontractor satisfies all requirements of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, maintenance of the required insurances coverage and provision of certificate(s) of insurance and additional insured endorsement(s), in proper form prior to commencement of services.

Any failure of SHPO to demand or receive proof of insurance shall not constitute a waiver of Contractor's obligation to obtain the required insurance. The receipt of any certification does not constitute an agreement by SHPO that the insurance requirements in the contract have been fully met or that the insurance policies indicated on the certificate complies with all contract requirements. SHPO reserves the right to modify, delete, alter or change insurance requirements at any time.

8.6. Termination Clauses

Contractor acknowledges the following Failure to Provide Services Procedures.

A. Failure to Provide Service

If the Contractor fails to provide any services described in the contact, or fails to meet any obligations contained therein, SHPO and ASG reserves the right to terminate the contract by providing written notices to the Contractor.

The Contractor will have a First Notice to Cure, including the submittal of a To Cure Plan within 3 days after notice, followed by 7 days cure the default period.

If said default cannot be cured within the First Notice to Cure period, a second 7 days' written Notice to Cure will be issued to the Contractor.

If default is not cured following the second To Cure period, SHPO or ASG may demand its own timetable or terminate the contract.



B. Authority to Terminate

SHPO Executive Director is authorized to terminate this contract on behalf of SHPO. ASG Administrator is authorized to cancel the contract resulting from this RFP on behalf of ASG.

C. Termination for Convenience

SHPO must have the right to terminate the contract without cause and at its convenience, with immediate written notice to the Contractor.

D. Force Majeure

It is mutually understood and agreed that the contract holder must be waived of its obligations under the contract during any period or periods of time when acts of God, war or public enemy render impossible its performance under the contract. In such case, the contract holder must give SHPO prompt oral notification followed by written notice of the and estimated duration of said Force Majeure.

E. Law to Govern

The parties acknowledge that the contract is made and entered in Puerto Rico and will be performed in Puerto Rico. The parties further acknowledge and agree that Puerto Rico law must govern all the rights, obligations, duties and liabilities of the parties under contact and that Puerto Rico law must govern the interpretation and enforcement of the contract and all legal matters relating to the contract. The parties further agree that all legal actions proceeding relating to the contract must be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in San Juan, Puerto Rico. By executing the contract, the parties submit to the jurisdiction of said courts and hereby irrevocably waive all objections that they may have with respect to venue in any court sitting in San Juan, Puerto Rico.

8.7. Contract Terms and Conditions

Contract Term: The contract term is 297 calendar days. The Contractor will have 252 calendar days after the Notice to Proceed to achieve the Substantial Completion; the Contractor will have 15 calendar days after Substantial Completion to achieve Final Completion. For administrative closing, the agency has allotted 30 calendar days after Final Completion.

The failure to complete the work within the Substantial Completion allotted time will be subject to the application of Liquidated Damages as per **Attachment K**, Liquidated Damages of Regulation #9230, *Uniform Regulation for Purchases and Bids of Goods, Works, and Nonprofessional Services of the General Services Administration of the Government of Puerto Rico*.

Notice to Proceed Orders: SHPO or its representative must issue official written Notice to Proceed (NTP) orders for the services referenced in this contract. The NTP orders shall stipulate the provision of services. Contractors are not authorized for the performance of any service outside written NTP orders provided by SHPO or its representative. Upon NTP, the awarded contractor shall begin work immediately.



Permits, Licenses, and Applicable Laws and Regulations: Any and all permits required will be the Contractor's responsibility. Contractor must adhere to all Federal, State and Municipal applicable laws, as well as FEMA and other Federal policies in place at the time of contract activation. Contracts which costs are anticipated to be funded, in whole or in part, with federal funds shall comply with any term and condition specified by the awarding federal agencies. This include but is not limited to the requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 200.320, et seq. and 2 C.F.R. Part 200 and any applicable Office of Management and Budget (OMB) circulars. By submitting a proposal under this RFP, Contractor acknowledges and represents it is or will be able to comply with the federal terms and conditions that may apply, as described in **Attachment L**, Minimum Federal terms and Conditions.

For any contract resulting from this RFP, compliance with **FEMA Super Circular** "2 CFR Chapter 2, Part 200 et. al" will be required. Links to the FEMA Super Circular are listed below:

http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl

https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2013-12-26/pdf/2013-30465.pdf

For any contract resulting from this RFP, compliance with **HUD General Provisions** will also be required due to the possibility of using match funding from HUD's Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) program managed by the Puerto Rico Department of Housing. Link to their *Procurement Manual and Contractual Requirements for CDBG-DR*: https://www.cdbg-dr.pr.gov/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/2018-11-08 CDBG-DR-Procurement-Guide-Ingles.pdf

As a Federally-funded activity, the removal and replacement of passenger and service elevators at Cuartel de Ballajá activities must comply with all applicable Federal laws, policies, and standards; noncompliance with this requirement may jeopardize the receipt of federal funds.

All required permits must be issued by the State or Federal regulatory agencies, as applicable, prior to initiating any site activity. Work performed without the corresponding permits will not be paid to the recipient or Contractors who performed the work. Contractors who do not obtain the proper permits and or do not follow permit requirements, applicable laws, and or regulations will be solely responsible for any costs associated with work deemed ineligible for reimbursement (with Federal or State funds), or for any fines, penalties, legal actions, or remediation requirements that may result. In entering a contract with SHPO, Contractor must indemnify SHPO, the Government of Puerto Rico, and their other agents, suppliers and assigns from any such costs or responsibilities.

Contractors must follow the Uniform General Conditions for Public Works Contracts in Puerto Rico. Access to the full document is given through the following link: http://app.estado.gobierno.pr/ReglamentosOnLine/Reglamentos/7998.pdf.

Liquidated Damages are determined as presented in Attachment K (Liquidated Damages), as identified in Regulation #9230.

Contractors will be solely responsible for any damages that may occur to people or property in the performance of work, be they accidental or due to negligence, and must fully repair and take all other necessary corrective actions required to resolve all damages or claims prior to submitting costs to SHPO for reimbursement. Unless adjudicated by a court of law, SHPO will be solely responsible for determining corrective actions and certifying that such actions are sufficient and appropriate. A



certification from SHPO and/or the injured party is required to document and demonstrate that appropriate corrective actions were taken, and that the situation was resolved prior to payment.

The Contractor must have and maintain a valid and appropriate business license (if applicable), meet all Local, State, and Federal codes, and have current all required Local, State, and Federal licenses.

Taxes, Patents, Liability, and Worker's Compensation: All municipal, payroll, and other taxes, patents, liability, and worker's compensation are the sole responsibility of the Contractor. The Contractors must comply and must make their subcontractors comply with all requirements, as applicable, of the Municipality Construction Tax and Patents laws and regulations. The Contractor understands that an employer/employee relationship does not exist under this contract.

On-Site Project Manager: The Contractor must designate an on-site Project Manager. The Project Manager must provide a telephone contact number to SHPO where he or she can be reached throughout the duration of the project. The Project Manager will be expected to have weekly project meetings with SHPO or its authorized representatives. Project Meeting topics will include, but not limited to, project status and completion progress, and SHPO/Contractor coordination for areas to be impacted by the work. Frequency of meetings may be adjusted by SHPO. The Contractor's Project Manager must be available twenty-four (24) hours a day, or as required by SHPO.

Safety: The Contractor will be solely responsible for maintaining safety at all work sites. The Contractor must take all reasonable steps to ensure safety for both workers and visitors at the work site. Safety at the site includes traffic control such as traffic cones and flag personnel. The Contractor will also be solely responsible for ensuring that all OSHA requirements are met and that a safety officer is assigned to the project for the duration of this Contract. Contractors who do not follow required and other reasonable safety requirements will be solely responsible for any costs associated with work deemed ineligible for reimbursement (with Federal or State funds), or for any fines, penalties, legal actions, awards, or corrective actions that may result. In entering a contract with SHPO, Contractors must SHPO, the Government of Puerto Rico, and their other agents, suppliers and assigns from any such costs or responsibilities.

Inspections: The removal and replacement of passenger and service elevators at Cuartel de Ballajá must be subject to inspection by SHPO and its authorized representatives. Inspections will be conducted to ensure compliance with the Contract and applicable Local, State and Federal laws. The Contractor must grant SHPO access to all work sites. The Contractor will work closely with SHPO, state authorities, FEMA and other agencies to ensure works and documentation is complete and accurate.

Debris Removal Standard of Performance: All debris identified by SHPO must be removed. Partial removal of debris piles is prohibited. No single piece of debris larger than twelve (12) inches in any dimension must be left on site, and each property must be left in generally clean and safe condition.

Documentation: Contractors must perform the following activities and provide the following documentation:

a) Provide documentation of work as directed/requested by SHPO.



- b) Provide written and oral status reports as directed/requested by SHPO.
- c) Review documentation to be provided to SHPO for accuracy and completeness and verify all work was completed as described.

Indemnification: Upon Contract Award, Bidder agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold SHPO, its officers, employees and agents free and harmless from and against any and all losses, penalties, damages, settlements, costs, charges, professional fees or other expenses or liabilities of every kind and character arising out of or relating to any and all claims, liens, demands, obligations, actions, proceedings, or causes of action of every kind in connection with or arising out of this agreement and/or the performance hereof that are due, in whole or in part, to the negligence of the Bidder, its officers, employees, subcontractors or agents. Bidder further agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, provide defense for, and defend the same at its sole expense and agrees to bear all other costs and expenses related thereto.

Assumption of Ineligible or Unauthorized Costs: The Contractor must be solely responsible for any and all costs incurred under this engagement that are the result of Contractor negligence, lack of adherence to the approved scope of work, purposeful or inadvertent damages to people or property (and any necessary or awarded costs to rectify same), or any other action or inaction that may result in costs being deemed in violation of law, regulation, or policy and/or being found ineligible for reimbursement by Federal, State, or other sources. Said costs must not be billed to nor reimbursed by SHPO.

Discretionary Action: SHPO reserves the right to require the Contractor to dismiss or remove from the project any workers or subcontractors as SHPO deems necessary.

9. Bidder Certification Requirement

Through the act of submitting a proposal, the authorized representative signing on behalf of the Bidder certifies, under penalty of perjury, that, to the best of the Bidder's and such person's knowledge and understanding, that:

- 1. The Proposal has been prepared independently without collusion, consultation, communication, or agreement with any other Bidder or with any other competitor who is not a Bidder.
- 2. Unless otherwise required by law, the Proposal has not been knowingly disclosed by the Bidder and will not be knowingly disclosed by the Bidder prior to the proposal submission deadline, directly or indirectly, to any other Bidder or to any other competitor who is not a Bidder.
- 3. The Bidder has not attempted or will not make any attempt to induce any other person, partnership, corporation, or government entity to submit or not submit a proposal in order to affect competition.
- 4. The Bidder is not in default or in default with the Government for any debt or contract, that it has not breached any obligation with the Government and that it has not been declared "not responsible" nor has it been disqualified from doing business by the Government, no other State of the Union or with the federal government, nor is there any pending procedure related to the responsibility or qualification of the Bidder to receive public contracts.



- 5. The Bidder must certify that neither the Contractor nor any employee thereof has any conflict of interest, either direct or indirect, about the services sought herein pursuant to Federal or State laws and regulations.
- 6. The Bidder knows and agrees to comply with all the terms and conditions of this RFP.

10. FOMB Contract Review

All contracts resulting from this RFP are subject to review by the FOMB in accordance with FOMB contract review policy and related amendments. Please refer to the FOMB Contract Review Policies available at https://iuntasupervision.pr.gov/documents/. Contractor will be required to sign a certification, presented in Attachment J (Contractor Certification Requirement), which shall be provided to the Federal Oversight Management Board with contracts submitted for review and approval.

11. Payments

Contractors must submit monthly invoices to SHPO for services provided unless a different timeline is directed by SHPO. Invoices must be complete and correct and must be documented in a manner that meets SHPO requirements as well as current federal requirements for reimbursement. Only costs (and associated documentation) associated with completed work may be included as part of invoices for review and approval, as evidenced by a certificate of work completion. Payments will be based on the approved cost breakdown. All invoices must be submitted within thirty (30) days from the end of the invoice period in which the work was performed. Invoices must be provided in an acceptable format to SHPO, in both an electronic and hard copy format, with detailed supporting documentation. The invoices must be submitted in accordance with Federal, State, and Local rules, regulations, and laws.

Invoices will be processed for payment only after approval by SHPO's Program Manager or his designee. Approval for payment must not be granted until appropriate and quality deliverables are received, and documentation is provided and determined to be correct, accurate, and consistent with SHPO, Government of Puerto Rico, and federal reimbursement requirements. SHPO will endeavor to pay Contractors as soon as practicable; however, Contractors should expect that they may have to carry costs for 90-120 days after invoice acceptance prior to being paid. For these reasons, Contractors must demonstrate in their proposals that they have enough financial capacity to continue to pay all staff and subcontractors in a timely manner (at least monthly) and continue to perform work under any eventual contract with SHPO without interruption or delay for at least that period of time.

12. Local Preference

In any purchase process, ASG will fully comply with the following preference policies, enshrined in the following legal provisions:

- a. Act 14-2004, as amended, known as the "Law for the Investment of the Puerto Rican Industry";
- b. **Act 129-2005**, as amended, known as the "Procurement Reserves Law of the Government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico";



- c. Act 253-2006, known as the "Law of Multiple Selection Contracts in Procurement Processes";
- d. Act 42-2018, as amended, known as the "Preference Law for Contractors and Local Construction Suppliers".

ASG will fully comply with certain measures that ensure compliance with the aforementioned public policy and with any other public policy provision that encourages and encourages local capital companies to increase their business opportunities, with the purpose of creating more and better jobs for the citizens.

- a. **USE OF PERCENT OF PREFERENCE**: The bidder who wishes that their preference percentage be acknowledged shall present the resolution granted by the Board of Investment in the Puerto Rican Industry, by the Puerto Rico Trade and Export Company or any other governing body, along with your offer in order to validate your preference. The resolution must provide the line or lines to which the preference has been granted.
- b. **ASSIGNMENT OF THE PERCENT OF PREFERENCE**: The bidder who has obtained the percentage of preference for manufacturing any of its products, may assign it to its agents established in Puerto Rico by means of a notarized letter in which it expressly indicates that it is assigning to each agent the percentage of preference granted for said product by the Board of Investment in the Puerto Rican Industry or any other governing body. Said letter must be approved and stamped with the official seal of the governmental entity that issues it.
- c. **APPLICATION OF THE PERCENT OF PREFERENCE**: If after applying the percent of preference, the items remain on equal terms, the award will be made in the following order: (1) products from Puerto Rico; (2) products from USA; and (3) foreign products.
- d. **UPDATED ISSUED RESOLUTION**: In every purchase made under a contract or purchase order as a result of this bidding document, the bidder who has obtained a preferential percent for their products, must present at the time of each purchase, the current resolution issued by the Board of Investment in the Puerto Rican Industry, by the Puerto Rico Trade and Export Company, or any other governing body. If the current resolution is not presented, the bidder will not be able to enjoy the benefits of said laws.



13. ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Bidder Proposal Checklist

Bidder Proposal Checklist Request for Sealed Proposals

Removal and Replacement of Passenger and Service Elevators at Cuartel de Ballajá Administración de Servicios Generales (ASG): RFP #21-003-OECH-R1

Proposals shall incorporate the following documents in the order provided. The forms included as part of the RFP must be completed and incorporated as part of the Proposal. ASG reserves the right to reject any Proposal that does not fully satisfy these requirements. Proposer shall mark their initials in the space provided below to indicate the compliance with the Checklist's requirements. If applicable, the Proposer shall submit for First-Tier Subcontractors, those items indicated as applicable with a checkmark.

Initials	Decument Decementian	
Illitiais	One (1) Sealed Physical Proposal (Office Secretary Bid Board)	
	One (1) Electronic copy of Proposal	
	One (1) Redacted copy of Proposal (if applicable)	
	Attachment A – Bidder Proposal Checklist duly initialized and signed.	
	Attachment B – Bidder Summary Information and Addenda	
	Acknowledgement duly completed and signed.	
	Proposer Transmittal letter (2 pgs.): Overview of the key elements of Proposal	
	and why Proposer should be selected duly signed.	
	Business Profile: Business profile establishing the experience, past performance,	
	and demonstrated ability of the firm to perform the RFP scope of work (30 pgs.	
	max). Must also include the following information or documents:	
	- Organizational Chart of the Business	
	- Registered Organizational Documents	
	- Professional Business licenses and credentials	
	Attachment C – Comparable Project Fact Sheet: List of 2 comparable project	
	experiences (3 pgs. per project)	
	Firm Financial Capacity: Include summary that demonstrates firm's adequate	
	financial resources, and financial capacity to pay employees and subs throughout	
contract regardless of timing of payments. Must also include:		
	- Most recent Audited Company Financial Statements.	
	Project Approach Narrative (4 pgs.)	
	Any proposed contracting of a subcontractor must be identified in this section by	
	detailing sub name, experience and role to play.	
	Project Organizational Chart, Staffing Plan & Key Personnel: The proposed	
	project organizational chart must show the corporate structure and lines of	
	responsibility and authority in the performance of the scope of work. Include:	
	- Project Organizational Chart	
	- Proposed Staffing Plan & Identification of Key Personnel	
	- Resumes of Key Personnel, Management & Important Positions (2	
	pgs. max resume per person)	
	Project Schedule & Milestones	
	Attachment D- Past Performance Questionnaire (PPQ)	
	Attachment E - Cost Form	
	1 Treatment L Cost I VIII	



Small, Minority and Women Owned Business (M/WBE) Certification or		
Attachment F		
Bid Bond or Attachment G - Bid Bond Form		
Attachment H – Contractor's Good Standing, Limited Denial of Participation		
(LDP)/Suspension or Debarment Status, legal Issues, Ownership Structures,		
and Conflicts duly signed with corporate seal.		
Attachment I – Lobbying Certification of Contracts, Grants, Loans, and		
Cooperative Agreements duly signed.		
Attachment J – Contractor Certification Requirement duly signed.		
First-Tier Subcontractor Information (if applicable): Including company experience, qualifications, role and approach to perform scope of work identified.		

ame of Proponent or Contractor
ontractor Authorized Representative Electronic Signature (If Corporation, Signed and Sealed)
nte .



Attachment B: Bidder Summary Information and Addenda Acknowledgment

BIDDER SUMMARY INFORMATION

Bidder Organization			
Name of Bidder Organization:			
Employer Social Security:			
Email Address:	Telephone:		
Postal Address:			
Bidder Point of G	Contact Information		
Name:	ame: Job Title:		
Bidder Universal Identifier Code from SAM			
Fax:	Telephone:		
Email Address:			
Postal Address:			
Physical Address:			
RFP Information			
RFP Number:	RFP Submission Deadline Date and Time:		

For Foreign Entities Only:

Foreign Entity			
Name of Resident Agent:			
Fax:	Telephone:		
Physical Address:			

The Bidder hereby acknowledges that he/she has read all instructions, terms, conditions, and clauses stated in this **RFP**, certifying his/her understanding and acceptance of compliance with the aforementioned.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA

The Bidder hereby acknowledges that he/she has received and read all the responses to all of the Proponents questions summarized in the **Request for Clarification Response Document**.

The Bidder hereby acknowledges that he/she has received and that he/she has considered in the preparation of his/her bids, all requirements in the following **Addenda to this Bid/Proposal/Contract**:

ADDENDUM NUMBER	DATE OF ADDENDUM	ACKNOWLEDGEMENT (Initial)



Sealed)

Date

	□ <u>NO ADDENDUM</u> WAS RECEIVED IN CONNECTION WITH THIS BID/PROPOSAL/CONTRACT.		
	wledgement:, certify that I am authorized to sign this proposal and that my name and		
	e are registered in the Sole Bidder Registry ("Registro Único de Licitadores RUL").		
Name of	f Proponent or Contractor		

IMPORTANT NOTICE:

THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED AND SUBMITTED BY ALL CONTRACTORS. IF NO ADDENDA IS RECEIVED, CHECK THE "NO ADDENDUM" BOX ABOVE AND SIGN THE ACKNOWLEDGMENT.

Contractor's Authorized Representative Electronic Signature (If Corporation, Signed and

ASG RETAINS THE ABSOLUTE RIGHT TO REJECT ANY PROPOSAL THAT FAILS TO INCLUDE THIS ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECIEPT OF ADDENDA.



Attachment C: Comparable Project Fact Sheet

Instructions: Complete the following form for each comparable project performed by Contractor. Forms shall not exceed three (3) pages per project. Any information that exceeds the stated page limit will not be considered.

	Proponent Information			
Proponent Company Name:	-			
Role:				
☐ Primary or General Contracto	r	☐ Joint Venture		
☐ Other, specify: Click or tap he	ere to enter text.			
	Project Details			
Project Name:				
Project Location:				
	ject Owner & Reference Informat	tion		
Company Name:				
Point of Contact Name:				
Title:	Phone:	Email:		
Project Start Date:				
Project Completion Date:				
Original Contract Amount (\$):				
Final Contract Amount (S):				
Contract Term:				
Project Status:				
	ect Description and Worked Perfo	rmed		
Size of Project (gross square feet				
	rformed, including the major disc			
l '	apleted by proponent, the work sul	ocontracted, and the work		
performed by others)				



Project Photos (provide at least 2):		



Attachment D: Past Performance Questionnaire

÷Ť÷	GSA

1. CONTRACTOR/OFFEROR INFORMATION Firm Name: Address: Phone Number: Contact Name Email Address Contact Name Email Address Contact Name Email Address Contact Phone Number: 2. GENERAL WORK INFORMATION Work performed as:				
1. CONTRACTOR/OFFEROR INFORMATION Firm Name: Address: Phone Number: Contact Name Email Address Contact Name Email Address Contact Name Email Address Contact Phone Number: 2. GENERAL WORK INFORMATION Work performed as:		PBS PAST PERFORMANCE QUESTIONNAIRE		
Firm Name: Address: Phone Number: Contact Name Email Address Contact Phone Number: Contact Name Email Address Contact Phone Number: 2. GENERAL WORK INFORMATION Work performed as:	CONTRACT INFORMATION (Contractor/Offeror to complete Blocks 1-4)			
Address: Phone Number: Contact Name Email Address Contact Phone Number: 2. GENERAL WORK INFORMATION Work performed as: Prime Contractor Sub Contractor Joint Venture Other (Please explain): Percent (%) of project work performed: If a subcontractor, who was the prime (Name/Phone #): 3. CONTRACT INFORMATION Contract Number: Delivery/Task Order Number (if applicable): Contract Type: Firm Fixed Price Cost Reimbursement Other (Please explain) Contract Title: Contract Completion Date (mm/dd/vg): Actual Completion Date (mm/dd/vg): Explain Differences: Original Contract Price (Award Amount): Final Contract Price (to include all modifications, if applicable): Explain Differences: 4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION Complexity of Work: High Med Routine How is this project relevant to project of submission? (Please provide details such as similar equipment, requirements, conditions, etc.) ISTRUCTIONS FOR CLIENTS COMPLETING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE: PBS requests that the client completes is questionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. The offeror will submit the completed questionnaire to SBS with their proposal_and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients are ghly encouraged to submit questionnaires directly to PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify to and all information on this form.	1. C	ONTRACTOR/OFFEROR INFORMATION		
Phone Number: Contact Name Email Address Contact Phone Number: 2. GENERAL WORK INFORMATION Work performed as:	1			
Contact Name Email Address Centract Phone Number: 2. GENERAL WORK INFORMATION Work performed as: Prime Contractor Sub Contractor Joint Venture Other (Please explain): Percent (%) of project work performed: If a subcontractor, who was the prime (Name/Phone #): 3. CONTRACT INFORMATION Contract Number: Delivery/Task Order Number (if applicable): Contract Type: Firm Fixed Price Cost Reimbursement Other (Please explain) Contract Title: Contract Completion Date (mm/dd/w): Award Date (mm/dd/w): Contract Completion Date (mm/dd/w): Explain Differences: Original Contract Price (Award Amount): Final Contract Price (to include all modifications, if applicable): Explain Differences: 4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION Complexity of Work: High Med Routine How is this project relevant to project of submission? (Please provide details such as similar equipment, requirements, conditions, etc.) ISTRUCTIONS FOR CLIENTS COMPLETING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE: PBS requests that the client completes is questionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. The offeror will submit the completed questionnaire to SBS with their praposal, and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients are ghly encouraged to submit questionnaire directly to the offeror. However, questionnaires may be submitted rectly to PBS. Please contact the offeror for PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify to and all information on this form.	_			
Email Address Contact Phone Number: 2. GENERAL WORK INFORMATION Work performed as: Prime Contractor Sub Contractor Joint Venture Other (Please explain): Percent (%) of project work performed: If a subcontractor, who was the prime (Name/Phone #): 3. CONTRACT INFORMATION Contract Number: Delivery/Task Order Number (if applicable): Contract Type: Firm Fixed Price Cost Reimbursement Other (Please explain) Contract Title: Contract Location: Award Date (mm/dd/\(\frac{1}{2} \)): Contract Completion Date (mm/dd/\(\frac{1}{2} \)): Explain Differences: Original Contract Price (Award Amount): Final Contract Price (Io include all modifications, if applicable): Explain Differences: 4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION Complexity of Work: High Med Routine How is this project relevant to project of submission? (Please provide details such as similar equipment, requirements, conditions, etc.) ISTRUCTIONS FOR CLIENTS COMPLETING THIS QUESTIONAIRE: PBS requests that the client completes is questionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. However, questionnaire to BS with their proposal_and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients are ghtly encouraged to submit questionnaires directly to the offeror. However, questionnaires may be submitted rectly to PBS. Please contact the offeror for PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify y and all information on this form.	-			
Work performed as: Prime Contractor Sub Contractor Joint Venture Other (Please explain): Percent (%) of project work performed: If a subcontractor, who was the prime (Name/Phone #): 3. CONTRACT INFORMATION Contract Number: Delivery/Task Order Number (if applicable): Contract Type: Firm Fixed Price Cost Reimbursement Other (Please explain) Contract Title: Contract Completion Date (mm/dd/w): Award Date (mm/dd/w): Contract Completion Date (mm/dd/w): Explain Differences: Original Contract Price (Award Amount): Final Contract Price (to include all modifications, if applicable): Explain Differences: 4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION Complexity of Work: High Med Routine How is this project relevant to project of submission? (Please provide details such as similar equipment, requirements, conditions, etc.) ISTRUCTIONS FOR CLIENTS COMPLETING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE: PBS requests that the client completes is questionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. The offeror will submit the completed questionnaire to BS with their proposal_and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients are play encouraged to submit questionnaires directly to the offeror. However, questionnaire may be submitted rectly to PBS. Please contact the offeror for PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify my and all information on this form.				
explain): Percent (%) of project work performed: If a subcontractor, who was the prime (Name/Phone #): 3. CONTRACT INFORMATION Contract Number: Delivery/Task Order Number (if applicable): Contract Type:	2. 0	ENERAL WORK INFORMATION	-	
If a subcontractor, who was the prime (Name/Phone #): 3. CONTRACT INFORMATION Contract Number: Delivery/Task Order Number (if applicable): Contract Type:				
3. CONTRACT INFORMATION Contract Number: Delivery/Task Order Number (if applicable): Contract Type: Firm Fixed Price Cost Reimbursement Other (Please explain) Contract Title: Contract Location: Award Date (mm/dd/w/): Contract Completion Date (mm/dd/w/): Explain Differences: Original Contract Price (Award Amount): Final Contract Price (to include all modifications, if applicable): Explain Differences: 4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION Complexity of Work: High Med Routine How is this project relevant to project of submission? (Please provide details such as similar equipment, requirements, conditions, etc.) ISTRUCTIONS FOR CLIENTS COMPLETING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE: PBS requests that the client completes is questionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. The offeror will submit the completed questionnaire to BS with their proposal_and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients are ghly encouraged to submit questionnaires directly to the offeror. However, questionnaires may be submitted rectly to PBS. Please contact the offeror for PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify 12, and all information on this form.	l			
Contract Number: Delivery/Task Order Number (if applicable): Contract Type: Firm Fixed Price Cost Reimbursement Other (Please explain) Contract Title: Contract Completion: Award Date (mm/dd/yg): Contract Completion Date (mm/dd/yg): Actual Completion Date (mm/dd/yg): Explain Differences: Original Contract Price (Award Amount): Final Contract Price (to include all modifications, if applicable): Explain Differences: 4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION Complexity of Work: High Med Routine How is this project relevant to project of submission? (Please provide details such as similar equipment, requirements, conditions, etc.) ISTRUCTIONS FOR CLIENTS COMPLETING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE: PBS requests that the client completes is questionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. The offeror will submit the completed questionnaire to BS with their proposal_and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients are ghly encouraged to submit questionnaires directly to the offeror. However, questionnaires may be submitted rectly to PBS. Please contact the offeror for PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify no part of the proposal_and may duplicate this questionnaire.				
Delivery/Task Order Number (if applicable): Contract Type:				
Contract Type: Firm Fixed Price Cost Reimbursement Other (Please explain) Contract Title: Contract Location: Award Date (mm/dd/yg): Contract Completion Date (mm/dd/yg): Actual Completion Date (mm/dd/yg): Explain Differences: Original Contract Price (Award Amount): Final Contract Price (to include all modifications, if applicable): Explain Differences: 4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION Complexity of Work: High Med Routine How is this project relevant to project of submission? (Please provide details such as similar equipment, requirements, conditions, etc.) ISTRUCTIONS FOR CLIENTS COMPLETING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE: PBS requests that the client completes is questionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. The offeror will submit the completed questionnaire to BS with their proposal_and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients are ghly encouraged to submit questionnaires directly to the offeror. However, questionnaires may be submitted rectly to PBS. Please contact the offeror for PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify not and all information on this form.	1			
Contract Title: Contract Location: Award Date (mm/dd/\text{\text{MV}}): Contract Completion Date (mm/dd/\text{\tex{\tex				
Award Date (mm/dd/xy): Contract Completion Date (mm/dd/xy): Actual Completion Date (mm/dd/xy): Explain Differences: Original Contract Price (Award Amount): Final Contract Price (to include all modifications, if applicable): Explain Differences: 4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION Complexity of Work: High Med Routine How is this project relevant to project of submission? (Please provide details such as similar equipment, requirements, conditions, etc.) ISTRUCTIONS FOR CLIENTS COMPLETING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE: PBS requests that the client completes is questionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. The offeror will submit the completed questionnaire to BS with their progosal_and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients are ghly encouraged to submit questionnaires directly to the offeror. However, questionnaires may be submitted rectly to PBS. Please contact the offeror for PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify and all information on this form.				
Contract Completion Date (mm/dd/w): Actual Completion Date (mm/dd/w): Explain Differences: Original Contract Price (Award Amount): Final Contract Price (to include all modifications, if applicable): Explain Differences: 4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION Complexity of Work: High Med Routine How is this project relevant to project of submission? (Please provide details such as similar equipment, requirements, conditions, etc.) ISTRUCTIONS FOR CLIENTS COMPLETING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE: PBS requests that the client completes its questionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. The offeror will submit the completed questionnaire to BS with their proposal_and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients are ghly encouraged to submit questionnaires directly to the offeror. However, questionnaires may be submitted rectly to PBS. Please contact the offeror for PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify my and all information on this form.	C	Contract Location:		
Contract Completion Date (mm/dd/w): Actual Completion Date (mm/dd/w): Explain Differences: Original Contract Price (Award Amount): Final Contract Price (to include all modifications, if applicable): Explain Differences: 4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION Complexity of Work: High Med Routine How is this project relevant to project of submission? (Please provide details such as similar equipment, requirements, conditions, etc.) ISTRUCTIONS FOR CLIENTS COMPLETING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE: PBS requests that the client completes its questionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. The offeror will submit the completed questionnaire to BS with their proposal_and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients are ghly encouraged to submit questionnaires directly to the offeror. However, questionnaires may be submitted rectly to PBS. Please contact the offeror for PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify my and all information on this form.				
Actual Completion Date (mm/dd/gg): Explain Differences: Original Contract Price (Award Amount): Final Contract Price (to include all modifications, if applicable): Explain Differences: 4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION Complexity of Work: High Med Routine How is this project relevant to project of submission? (Please provide details such as similar equipment, requirements, conditions, etc.) ISTRUCTIONS FOR CLIENTS COMPLETING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE: PBS requests that the client completes is questionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. The offeror will submit the completed questionnaire to BS with their proposal_and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients are ghly encouraged to submit questionnaires directly to the offeror. However, questionnaires may be submitted rectly to PBS. Please contact the offeror for PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify and all information on this form.				
Explain Differences: Original Contract Price (Award Amount): Final Contract Price (to include all modifications, if applicable): Explain Differences: 4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION Complexity of Work:				
Original Contract Price (Award Amount): Final Contract Price (to include all modifications, if applicable): Explain Differences: 4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION Complexity of Work:				
Final Contract Price (to include all modifications, if applicable): Explain Differences: 4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION Complexity of Work: High Med Routine How is this project relevant to project of submission? (Please provide details such as similar equipment, requirements, conditions, etc.) ISTRUCTIONS FOR CLIENTS COMPLETING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE: PBS requests that the client completes is questionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. The offeror will submit the completed questionnaire to BS with their proposal, and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients are ghly encouraged to submit questionnaires directly to the offeror. However, questionnaires may be submitted rectly to PBS. Please contact the offeror for PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify and all information on this form.				
Explain Differences: 4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION Complexity of Work: High Med Routine How is this project relevant to project of submission? (Please provide details such as similar equipment, requirements, conditions, etc.) ISTRUCTIONS FOR CLIENTS COMPLETING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE: PBS requests that the client completes is questionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. The offeror will submit the completed questionnaire to BS with their proposal, and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients are ghly encouraged to submit questionnaires directly to the offeror. However, questionnaires may be submitted rectly to PBS. Please contact the offeror for PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify and all information on this form.	C	Original Contract Price (Award Amount):		
4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION Complexity of Work:				
Complexity of Work: High Med Routine How is this project relevant to project of submission? (Please provide details such as similar equipment, requirements, conditions, etc.) ISTRUCTIONS FOR CLIENTS COMPLETING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE: PBS requests that the client completes is questionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. The offeror will submit the completed questionnaire to BS with their proposal, and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients are ighly encouraged to submit questionnaires directly to the offeror. However, questionnaires may be submitted rectly to PBS. Please contact the offeror for PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify my and all information on this form.	Е	explain Differences:		
How is this project relevant to project of submission? (Please provide details such as similar equipment, requirements, conditions, etc.) ISTRUCTIONS FOR CLIENTS COMPLETING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE: PBS requests that the client completes is questionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. The offeror will submit the completed questionnaire to BS with their proposal, and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients are ighly encouraged to submit questionnaires directly to the offeror. However, questionnaires may be submitted rectly to PBS. Please contact the offeror for PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify my and all information on this form.				
ISTRUCTIONS FOR CLIENTS COMPLETING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE: PBS requests that the client completes is questionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. The offeror will submit the completed questionnaire to BS with their proposal, and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients are ighly encouraged to submit questionnaires directly to the offeror. However, questionnaires may be submitted rectly to PBS. Please contact the offeror for PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify my and all information on this form.				
is questionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. The offeror will submit the completed questionnaire to BS with their proposal_and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients are ghly encouraged to submit questionnaires directly to the offeror. However, questionnaires may be submitted rectly to PBS. Please contact the offeror for PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify my and all information on this form.				
is questionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. The offeror will submit the completed questionnaire to BS with their proposal_and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients are ghly encouraged to submit questionnaires directly to the offeror. However, questionnaires may be submitted rectly to PBS. Please contact the offeror for PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify my and all information on this form.				
PRS Past Performance Questionnaire	this qı PBS v highly directl	pestionnaire and submits it directly back to the offeror. The offeror will submit the completed questionnaire with their proposal, and may duplicate this questionnaire for future submission on PBS solicitations. Clients encouraged to submit questionnaires directly to the offeror. However, questionnaires may be submitted by to PBS. Please contact the offeror for PBS POC information. The government reserves the right to verify	to are	
PRS Past Performance Questionnaire				
PRS Past Performance Questionnaire				
PRS Past Performance Questionnaire				
PRS Past Performance Questionnaire				
PRS Past Performance Questionnaire				
PRS Past Performance Lillestingnaire		C Deat Deference Overfinencies		
July 2014 32			2	





Use the following adjective ratings and definitions in your evaluation of the Contractor's performance.			
RATING	DEFINITION	NOTE	
(E) Exceptional	Performance meets contractual requirements and exceeds many to the Government/Owner's benefit. The contractual performance of the element or sub-element being assessed was accomplished with few minor problems for which corrective actions taken by the contractor was highly effective.	An Exceptional rating is appropriate when the Contractor successfully performed multiple significant events that were of benefit to the Government/Owner. A singular benefit, however, could be of such magnitude that it alone constitutes an Exceptional rating. Also, there should have been NO significant weaknesses identified.	
and exceeds some to the Government's/Owner's benefit. The contractual performance of the element or sub-element Government/Owner. There		A Very Good rating is appropriate when the Contractor successfully performed a significant event that was a benefit to the Government/Owner. There should have been no significant weaknesses identified.	
(S) Satisfactory	Performance meets minimum contractual requirements. The contractual performance of the element or sub-element contains some minor problems for which corrective actions taken by the contractor appear or were satisfactory.	A Satisfactory rating is appropriate when there were only minor problems, or major problems that the contractor recovered from without impact to the contract. There should have been NO significant weaknesses identified. Per DOD policy, a fundamental principle of assigning ratings is that contractors will not be assessed a rating lower than Satisfactory solely for not performing beyond the requirements of the contract.	
(M) Marginal	Performance does not meet some contractual requirements. The contractual performance of the element or sub-element being assessed reflects a serious problem for which the contractor has not yet identified corrective actions. The contractor's proposed actions appear only marginally effective or were not fully implemented.	A Marginal is appropriate when a significant event occurred that the contractor had trouble overcoming which impacted the Government/Owner.	
(U) Unsatisfactory	Performance does not meet most contractual requirements and recovery is not likely in a timely manner. The contractual performance of the element or sub-element contains serious problem(s) for which the contractor's corrective actions appear or were ineffective.	An Unsatisfactory rating is appropriate when multiple significant events occurred that the contractor had trouble overcoming and which impacted the Government/Owner. A singular problem, however, could be of such serious magnitude that it alone constitutes an unsatisfactory rating.	
(N) Not Applicable	No information or did not apply to your contract	Rating will be neither positive nor negative.	





TO BE COMPLETED BY CLIENT

CLIENT INFORMATION						
Client Point of Contact Information						
Name:						
Title:						
Phone Number:						
Email Address:						
Project Information						
Contract Type:						
Contract Title:						
Contract Location:						
Describe your role in the project:						
Date Questionnaire was completed (mm/dd/w):						
Client's Signature:						
Instructions: Please select the adjective rating that best reflects your evalua-	tion of	the cor	ntracto	r's perf	orman	ce.
1. QUALITY:	Е	VG	S	М	U	N
(a) Quality of technical data/report preparation efforts.						
(b) Ability to meet quality standards specified for technical performance.						
(c) Timeliness/effectiveness of contract problem resolution without extensive customer guidance.						
(d) Adequacy/effectiveness of quality control program and adherence to contract quality assurance requirements (without adverse effect on performance).						
2. SCHEDULE/TIMELINESS OF PERFORMANCE:	Е	VG	S	М	U	N
(a) Compliance with contract delivery/completion schedules including any significant intermediate milestones. (If liquidated damages were assessed or the schedule was not met, please address below.)						
(b) Rate the contractor's use of available resources to accomplish tasks identified in the contract.						
3. CUSTOMER SATISFACTION:	Е	VG	S	М	U	N
(a) To what extent were the end users satisfied with the project?						
(b) Contractor was reasonable and cooperative in dealing with your staff (including the ability to successfully resolve disagreements/disputes; responsiveness to administrative reports, businesslike and communication).						
(c) To what extent was the contractor cooperative, businesslike, and concerned with the interests of the customer?						
(d) Overall customer satisfaction.						
4. MANAGEMENT/ PERSONNEL/LABOR	Е	VG	S	М	U	N
(a) Effectiveness of on-site management, including management of subcontractors, suppliers, materials, and/or labor force?						
(b) Ability to hire, apply, and retain a qualified workforce to this effort.						

PBS Past Performance Questionnaire July 2014

34





4. MANAGEMENT/ PERSONNEL/LABOR - Continued	E	VG	S	M	U	N
(c) Government Property Control.						
(d) Knowledge/expertise demonstrated by contractor personnel.						
(e) Utilization of Small Business concerns.						
(f) Ability to simultaneously manage multiple projects with multiple disciplines.						
(g) Ability to assimilate and incorporate changes in requirements and/or priority, including planning, execution and response to Government changes.	0 0 0					
(h) Effectiveness of overall management (including ability to effectively lead, manage and control the program).						
5. COST/FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT	E	VG	S	M	U	N
(a) Ability to meet the terms and conditions within the contractually agreed price(s)?						
(b) Contractor proposed innovative alternative methods/processes that reduced cost, improved maintainability or other factors that benefited the client.						
(c) If this is/was a Government cost type contract, or a CMc/CMc at Risk Contract, please rate the Contractor's timeliness and accuracy in submitting monthly invoices with appropriate back-up documentation, monthly status reports/budget variance reports, compliance with established budgets and avoidance of significant and/or unexplained variances (under runs or overruns).		0 0 0				
(d) Is the Contractor's accounting system adequate for management and tracking of costs? (If no, please explain in comment section below.)	Yes No					
(e) If this is/was a Government contract, has/was this contract been partially or completely terminated for default or convenience or are there any pending terminations? (Indicate if show cause or cure notices were issued, or any default action in comment section below.)	☐ Yes ☐ No					
(f) Have there been any indications that the contractor has had any financial problems? (If yes, please explain in the comment section below.)	☐ Yes ☐ No					
6. SAFETY/SECURITY	E	VG	S	M	U	N
(a) To what extent was the contractor able to maintain an environment of safety, adhere to its approved safety plan, and respond to safety issues? (Includes: following the users rules, regulations, and requirements regarding housekeeping, safety, correction of noted deficiencies, etc.).						
(b) Contractor complied with all security requirements for the project and personnel security requirements.						
7. GENERAL	E	VG	S	М	U	N
(a) Ability to successfully respond to emergency and/or surge situations (including notifying COR, PM or Contracting Officer in a timely manner regarding urgent contractual issues).						
(b) Compliance with contractual terms/provisions (If there were specific issues, please explain in the comments sections below						
(c) In summary, provide an overall rating for the work performed by this contractor.						

PBS Past Performance Questionnaire July 2014



0	C	м
Œ	1	Α

8. SUSTAINABILITY		
Did this project include sustainable methods, materials, processes or certifications? (See Whole Building Design Guide for acceptable requirements. Link to guide WBDG Green Building Standards and Certification Systems.) (If yes, please explain in the comments section below.)	☐ Yes	□ No
9. SUMMARY		I RITERIO DE
Would you hire or work with this firm again? (If no, please explain in the comments section below.)	Yes	□ No

COMMENTS SECTION

Please provide additional information below, and attach additional pages if necessary.

Please provide responses to the above questions (if applicable) and/or additional remarks. Also please provide a brief narrative addressing specific strengths, weaknesses, deficiencies, or other comments which may assist our office in evaluating performance risk (please attach additional pages if necessary):



Attachment E: Cost Form

1 REIMBUR	SABLE EXPE	NSES *		
1.1 CFSE	1	LS	\$ \$	
1.2 Insurances and Bonds (P&P, etc)	1	LS	\$ \$	
1.3 Municipal Construction Tax and Patent	1	LS	\$ \$	
1. Sub-total:			\$	-
2 GENERAL	CONDITION	NS		
2.1 Project Sign	1	EA	\$ \$	
2.2 Mobilization	1	LS	\$ \$	
2. Sub-total:			\$	-
3 ELEVATO	RS CUARTEL	DE BALLAJÁ	_	
3.1 Passenger Elevator	1	LS	\$ \$	
3.2 Freight/Service Elevator	1	LS	\$ \$	
3. Sub-total:			\$	-
				_
1-2-3 TOTAL			\$	-

• These costs in **Section I** will be reimbursed with proof of payment. The reimbursement cannot exceed the proposed cost per item.



Attachment F: M/WBE Efforts

This form is to be completed by the Proponent if their Firm, or the proposed subcontracted entities, $\underline{\mathbf{do}}$ $\underline{\mathbf{not\ have}}$ a M/WBE certification.

The Proponent must explain the steps made so that Minority Business Enterprises (MBE) and Women Business Enterprises (WBE) participate in the work required in this contract by documenting efforts for contracting M/WBE's and contracting minorities and women.

M/WBE Form
Who performed the effort(s):
☐ Recipient ☐ Prime Contractor ☐ Subcontractor ☐ Other, specify Click or tap here to enter text.
Describe types of efforts made: (see example to complete: Direct Solicitation; Negotiation; Queries to Databases; etc.)
Which group was targeted (WBE, MBE, or Both):
Date(s) of efforts made:
Briefly provide a summary description of your M/WBE efforts: (examples: Provided documents/plans/bid specifications to certified M/WBE's and allowed adequate time to respond; Sent written notification to M/WBE and trade associations located in the region where work will be performed; Log responses from M/WBEs.; etc.)
Difficulties/Additional Information: Provide any other information you deem relevant which may help us in evaluating the extent of your efforts. (examples: We were not able to contract M/WBE firms because the projects required: [type here]; For Projects A,B,C, D only X # of MWBE firms were able to be incorporated due to factors such as pricing, availability, [type here]; etc.)



Attachment G: Bid Bond Form

vely with
ntality of
bligee"),
ul money
our heirs.
·
hin such le to the erwise to
eral seals presents

[REMAINDER OF THE PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]



Attest:	Proponent:
	(Legal Name of
	Proponent)
	By:
	(Signature of Proponent's Authorized Representative)
[CORPORATE SEAL]	
	(Printed Name of Proponent's Authorized Representative)
	(Title of Proponent's Authorized Representative)
	Surety:
	(Name of Surety)
	By:
	(Electronic Signature of Surety's Authorized Representative)
[CORPORATE SEAL]	
	(Name of Surety's Authorized Representative)
	(Title of Surety's Authorized Representative)



Attachment H: Contractor's Good Standing, Limited Denial of Participation (LDP)/Suspension or Debarment Status, Legal Issues, Ownership Structures, and Conflicts

FROM:			
Name of Primary Contra	ector:		
Primary Contractor Auth	norized Representative:		<u> </u>
Mailing Address:			
Contact Telephone:			
In addition, the Contract proposing entities:	or discloses the Identific	cation of Officers, Directo	ors, and Partners of
Name	Position	Proposing Entity	Address

The prospective primary Contractor certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its Officers, Directors, and Partners of proposing entities:



Certified:

- (a) are in Good Standing with any and all Federal, State and local agencies that has or had a contractual relationship with the Contractor or any of its Officers, Directors, and Partners of proposing entity
- (b) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal, State, and local department or agency;
- (c) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgement rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
- (d) are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; including PR Law No. 2 of January 4th, 2018 as amended
- (e) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.
- (f) Contractor does not and will not have any actual, apparent and potential conflicts; overlapping ownership interests of Directorship in other participating Contractors' firms or entities; ownership interests or participation in a Design, Construction or Private Management Agent for any of the projects to be awarded for the services to be provided under this project.

coming.	
Name of Proponent or Contractor	
Contractor Authorized Representative Electron Sealed)	nic Signature (If Corporation, Signed and
Date	

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective Contractor must attach an explanation to this proposal.



Attachment I: Lobbying Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- (1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned must complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
- (3) The undersigned must require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients must certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification must be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

statement of its certification and disc	, certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each closure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands and agrees 601 <i>et seq.</i> , apply to this certification and disclosure, if any.
Name of Proponent or Contractor	
Contractor Authorized Representative	ve Electronic Signature (If Corporation, Signed and Sealed)
 Date	



Attachment J: Contractor Certification Requirement

The following certification shall be provided to the Federal Oversight Management Board by each contractor under contracts submitted for review:

- 1. The contractor's subcontractor(s) in connection with the contract⁴ is (are) the following:
- 2. Neither the contractor nor any of its owners⁵, partners, directors, officials or employees, has agreed to share or give a percentage of the contractor's compensation under the contract to, or otherwise compensate, any third party, whether directly or indirectly, in connection with the procurement, negotiation, execution or performance of the contract, except as follows:

(Name of individual or firm, including names of principals or owners of the latter) (Principal terms and conditions of the compensation sharing arrangement)

- 3. To the best knowledge of the signatory (after due investigation), no person has unduly intervened in the procurement, negotiation or execution of the contract, for its own benefit or that of a third person, in contravention of applicable law.
- 4. To the best knowledge of the signatory (after due investigation), no person has: (i) offered, paid, or promised to pay money to; (ii) offered, given, or promised to give anything of value to; or (iii) otherwise influenced any public official or employee with the purpose of securing any advantages, privileges or favors for the benefit of such person in connection with the contract (such as the execution of a subcontract with contractor, beneficial treatment under the contract, or the written or unwritten promise of a gift, favor, or other monetary or non-monetary benefit).
- 5. Neither the contractor, nor any of its owners, partners, directors, officials or employees or, to the best of its knowledge (after due investigation), its representatives or sub-contractors, has required, directly or indirectly, from third persons to take any action with the purpose of influencing any public official or employee in connection with the procurement, negotiation or execution of the contract.

The above certifications shall be signed by the Chief Executive Officer (or other officer with equivalent position or authority to issue such certifications) of the contractor.

In the event that a contractor is not able to provide any of the above certifications, such contractor shall provide a written statement setting forth the reasons therefor.

Name of Proponent or Contractor
Contractor Authorized Representative Electronic Signature (If Corporation, Signed and Sealed)
Date

⁴ As used herein, the term "contract" is inclusive of any amendments, modifications or extensions.

⁵ For purposes of this certification, a contractor's "owner" shall mean any person or entity with more than a ten percent (10%) ownership interest in the contractor.



Attachment K: Liquidated Damages

As specified in Regulation #9230, Uniform Regulation for Purchases and Bids of Goods, Works, and Nonprofessional Services of the General Services Administration of the Government of Puerto Rico:

The sum to pay for delay in the delively of the good or nonprofessional service in no way represents a penalty but does represent damages agreed between both parties to compensate the Government of Puerto Rico for additional expenses and other setbacks. The foregoing shall apply to construction projects contracts. The penalty for late delivery of the construction project shall be the following:

Penalty for late delivery of the construction project:

Price of the Original Contract		Daily fee
From this amount	Up to this amount, inclusive	
\$00.00	\$99,999.99	\$300.00
\$100,000.00	\$499,999.99	\$400.00
\$500,000.00	\$999,999.99	\$800.00
\$1,000.000.00	\$1,999,999.99	\$1,000.00
\$2,000,000.00	\$4,999,999.99	\$2,000.00
\$5,000,000.00	\$9,999,999.99	\$3,000.00
\$10,000,000.00	\$19,999,999.99	\$4,000.00
\$20,000,000.00	\$29,999,999.99	\$5,000.00
\$30,000,000.00	\$39,999,999.99	\$6,000.00
\$40,000,000.00	\$49,999,999.99	\$7,000.00
\$50,000,000.00	Unlimited	\$8,000.00 or any other amount
		agreed in the contract



Attachment L: Minimum Federal Terms and Conditions

- 1. Clean Air Act and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Contracts of amounts in excess of \$150,000.00 must contain provisions that requires the contractor to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §§7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. §§ 1251-1387)
- 2. **Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment** Contractors that apply or bid for an award of \$100,000.00 or more must file the required certification. (31 U.S.C. § 1352, as amended); (44 C.F.R. Part 18)
- 3. **Buy American Act of 1933** To the extent applicable, Contractor shall comply with the Buy American Act in the purchases of goods (articles, materials or supplies) valued over \$10,000.00. (41 U.S.C §8301 et seq.)
- 4. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standard Act Where applicable, this act requires compliance with 40 U.S.C. § 3701 et seq. to all FEMA grants that involves the employment of mechanics and laborers, which include watchmen and guards.
- 5. **Davis-Bacon and Related Acts** To the extent applicable, Contractor shall comply with the prevailing wage requirements applicable to construction, alteration, or repair of public buildings or public works. (29 CFR Parts 1, 3 and 5)
- 6. **Solid Waste Disposal Act** To the extent applicable, Contractor will comply with regulations related to waste management and disposition in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery. (42 U.S.C. §6002 et seq.)
- 7. **Age Discrimination Act of 1975** No person in the United States shall, based on age, be excluded from participating in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under, any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.)
- 8. **Rehabilitation Act of 1973** Contractors will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment solely because of physical or mental handicap for which the employee or applicant is otherwise well qualified. (29 U.S.C. § 701 et seq.)
- 9. **Civil Rights Act of 1964** No person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color or national origin, be excluded from participating in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under, any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. (42 U.S.C § 1971, et seq.)
- 10. **Energy Efficiency** The Contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of 42 U.S.C § 6201 which contain policies relating to energy efficiency.



- 11. Compliance with the United States Office of Management and Budget Contractor agrees to comply with the regulations, policies, guidelines and requirements related to the use of federal funds under the contract.
- 12. **Compliance with Laws, Regulations and Executive Orders** The Contractor acknowledges that FEMA, HUD or other federal financial disaster funds will be used to fund work under the RFP and the resulting contract. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal and Puerto Rico Government laws, regulations, executive orders, policies, procedures, and directives, including but not limited to the Puerto Rico Anticorruption Code, all Federal Cost Principles set forth in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, and all applicable FEMA regulations in 44 C.F.R. Chapter 1.